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OUR VISION
To be the market leader 

in provision of renewable 
energy solutions.

OUR PROMISE 
We promise to generate clean energy 

for the nation as we create value for our 
stakeholders. We have laid a firm foundation 

for a full transition to a renewable energy 
future. Our transition to 100% clean energy is 
about making a sustainable investment for 

our future. We remain committed to realizing 
our renewable agenda.

MISSION
To deliver competitively priced electricity in 
the region by leveraging our highly skilled 

talent, engaging closely with stakeholders, 
employing efficient processes, and utilising 

modern technology.

CORPORATE 
THEME 

JenGa KenGen 
Inua Mapato

OUR VALUES
Core values are our guiding principles 

and form the foundation of our culture. 
They are: 

Team Spirit
Integrity

Professionalism
Safety Culture
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94MW 
HYDRO

Kamburu Hydro Dam









KenGen General Manager 
ICT, Ahmed Haji Issack, 
proudly presents the CIO 
100 Award to KenGen 
Managing Director and 
CEO, Eng. Peter Njenga, 
at Stima Plaza.  Looking 
on is ICT Manager, 
Dr. Dan Kemei. This 
recognition celebrates 
KenGen’s excellence 
in digital innovation 
and technology-driven 
transformation powering 

Team JenGa KenGen 
proudly took top 
honors at the HR 
Awards, a celebration 
of excellence in people 
management and 
workplace innovation
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Total Revenue (KShs Millions)

56,098 56,297 53,964 47,477 45,791

2024 2023 2022 20212025

Revenue less reimbursable 
expenses (KShs Millions)

46,451 48,294 45,843 37,724 41,631

2024 2023 2022 20212025

Key Financial Metrics

2025 Business Verticals 

Installed Capacity (MW)

1,786 1,726 1,904 1,904 1,818

2024 2023 2022 20212025

Units Sold Out (GWh)

8,482 8,383 8,027 7,918 8,443

2024 2023 2022 20212025

Key Generation Metrics

Operating Profit (KShs Millions)

13,617

 (4,992)

 (4,150)

 (3,508)

 (2,810)

13,617

9,551 9,568 6,080 16,418

2024 2023 2022 20212025

2025

2024

2023

2022

2021

Profit Before Tax (KShs Millions)

15,473 10,947 8,525 6,192 15,303

2024 2023 2022 20212025

Taxation credit/(charge) (KShs Millions)
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Who we Are

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

Who we Are

Corporate Information

Registered Office	 KenGen Pension Plaza 2
Head Office	 Kolobot Road, P.O. Box 47936-00100
	 GPO Nairobi, Kenya

Registrars 	 Image Registrars Limited 
	 ABSA Towers, 5th Floor, Loita Street
	 P.O. Box 9287-00100 GPO, Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Auditor	 The Auditor-General
	 Anniversary Towers
	 P.O. Box 30084-00100 GPO, Nairobi, Kenya

Delegated Auditor                Deloitte & Touché
	 Certified Public Accountants (Kenya)
	 Delta Towers, Waiyaki Way/Chiromo Road, Westlands
	 P.O. Box 40092 - 00100 GPO, Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Bankers	

Eng. Peter Njenga	 - Managing Director & CEO 
FCS. Austin Ouko	 - Company Secretary & General Manager Legal Affairs
CPA. Mary Maalu 	 - General Manager, Finance 
Mr. Peketsa Mangi 	 - General Manager, Geothermal Development 
CPA. Elizabeth Njenga 	 - General Manager, Business Development & Strategy 
Eng. Julius Odumbe 	 - General Manager, Operations 
CPA, CIA. Erick Audi 	 - General Manager, Internal Audit 
Mr. Ahmed Haji Issack	 - General Manager, ICT
Mr. Vincent Mamboleo	 - General Manager, Supply Chain 
Mr. Philip Yego	 - General Manager, Supply Chain (Retired 1st November 2024) 
Eng. Ronoh Kibet 	 - General Manager, Commercial Services 
Mr. David Muthike 	 - General Manager, Commercial Services (Retired 1st November 2024) 
Mrs. Beatrice Kandie	 - General Manager, Corporate Services 
Mr. Abraham Serem	 - General Manager, Corporate Services (Retired 20th February 2025)

NCBA Bank Kenya Plc
Wabera Street
P.O. Box 30437 - 00100
Nairobi

Co-operative Bank of 
Kenya Limited
Stima Plaza
P.O. Box 38764-00600
Nairobi

Citibank NA Kenya
Upper Hill
P.O. Box 30711 - 00100
Nairobi

Stanbic Bank (K) Ltd
Kenyatta Avenue 
Branch
P.O. Box 30552 - 00100
Nairobi

KCB Bank (K) Ltd
Moi Avenue Branch
P.O. Box 24030 - 00100
Nairobi

Standard Chartered Bank 
Kenya Limited
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 30003 - 00100
Nairobi

Equity Bank (K) Ltd
Westlands,
P.O. Box 14253 - 00800
Nairobi

Bank of Africa (K) Ltd
Sameer Business Park, 
Unit C. 1st Floor
P.O. Box 69562 - 00400
Nairobi

Absa Bank Kenya Plc 
Westend Building, Cor-
porate Banking Centre 
P.O. Box 30120 – 00100 
Nairobi

Management Team
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Who we Are

Corporate Information
Our Stakeholders: What Matters to Them 

KenGen is committed to engaging with stakeholders at global, national, and local levels to cultivate long-
term, mutually beneficial relationships.

As a company, we believe in fostering healthy relationships with our stakeholders, which enhances our 
ability to communicate how our business decisions, activities, and performance can significantly impact or 
interest them. Through our stakeholder mapping process to better understand their needs, opportunities, 
expectations, and areas for collaboration across diverse groups, each of which requires tailored engagement 
strategies as they play unique roles in shaping KenGen’s business environment.

Stakeholder Why this 
stakeholder is 
important to us

How we engage What Matters to 
our stakeholders

How we respond to 
them

Government 
(MoEP, National 
Treasury, 
Counties, 
Politicians and 
Others)

We seek to 
contribute to the 
national discourse 
on the regulatory 
environment in 
which we operate 
and collaborate in 
creating solutions 
to meeting Kenyans 
aspirations and 
energy demand

• Letters
• Site Tours
• One-on-One 

meetings
• Courtesy Calls
• Technical 

Working Groups

• uninterrupted 
supply of 
electricity

• Cost of power
• Public interest
• Capacity 

expansion

• Running of power 
plants.

• Deployment 
of affordable 
electricity 
generating 
technologies.

• Building new power 
plants

Shareholder/
Investors

The support of 
our shareholders 
enables us to 
implement our 
strategy and 
achieve business 
goals

• Investor 
briefings

• shareholder 
tours

• NSE 
announcements 
and activities

• Investor 
relations

• Results 
Announcements

• Shareholder 
information on 
the Website

• Annual General 
Meeting

• Annual Report

• Dividends
• Business 

Performance 
• Robust 

Corporate 
Governance 

• Sustainability
• Shareholder 

value.
• Astute 

leadership
• Board continuity

• Dividend payout and 
share performance

• Continual 
improvement

• Regular Dialogue 
and communication

• Robust Corporate 
Governance.

• Implementing ESG
• Innovation
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Who we Are

Corporate Information
Our Stakeholders: What Matters to Them 

Stakeholder Why this 
stakeholder is 
important to us

How we engage What Matters to 
our stakeholders

How we respond to 
them

Regulators As a responsible 
corporate 
citizen KenGen’s 
operates within 
set laws, rules and 
regulations. 
Our compliance and 
fidelity to the law 
makes our business 
sustainable. 
Through the 
oversight of our 
diverse regulators, 
we deliver value 
within the confines 
of the law and laid 
down rules. 

• Letters/Emails
• Roundtable 

Briefings
• One-on-One 

meetings
• Courtesy calls
• Reports

• Regulatory 
Compliance

• Good practices
• Dialogue
• Licenses 
• Consultations
• Support
• Enforcement 
• Reports
  Regulations

• Audits
• Regulatory 

reporting 
• Implementation of 

regulations
• Benchmarking
• Regular 

communication 
and participation in 
regulatory activities.

• Continual 
engagement and 
involvement.

• Licenses 
application and 
renewal

Energy Sector 
Partners

Through the 
energy sector 
value, KenGen 
collaborates with 
other sector players 
to ensure we deliver 
competitively 
priced electricity 
to Kenyans from 
generation to 
transmission to 
distribution.

• Round table 
meetings.

• Energy planning 
meetings.

• Site visits

• Updates 
and new 
developments in 
the energy sector
• Collaboration 
requirements to 
ensure power 
availability.
• Emerging issues 
• Contingency 
Plans for the 
sector

• Regular information 
on power 
production. 

• Regular information 
on water levels at 
the dams regarding 
hydro power 
generation.

• Cooperation and 
collaboration

• Energy Planning 
meetings

Development 
Partners

As we generate 
electricity, KenGen 
requires financial 
partners who 
provide affordable 
financing for 
building power 
plants. Our 
development 
partners offer 
us affordable 
financing.

• Courtesy Calls
• Meetings
• Site visits
• Financial reports

• Projects 
progress

• Strategic plans
• Ability to repay 

loans.
• Sound financial 

status
• Donor Specific 

requirements

• Project Appraisal 
report.

• Project pipeline 
updates and 
outlook.

• Good financial 
performance.

• Complying 
with financing 
requirements 
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Who we Are

Corporate Information

Stakeholder Why this 
stakeholder is 
important to us

How we engage What Matters to 
our stakeholders

How we respond to 
them

Employees The quality of 
our employees is 
the reason why 
we continue to 
perform well. We 
are committed 
to attracting and 
retaining best talent 
while providing a 
fulfilling reward and 
responsible work 
environment.

• Memos
• Internal 

Newsletter 
(KenGen 
Weekly)

• Intranet
• Notice Boards
• Emails
• Virtual forums 

and townhalls
• Training events 
• Individual 

performance 
review

• Employee 
surveys

• SMS

• Reward
• Career Growth
• Diversity and 

Inclusion
• Health and 

safety
• Training
• Strategic targets
• information

• Regular employee 
engagement and 
communication.

• Launch of diversity 
and inclusion 
programs for 
women, youth, 
persons with 
disabilities: Pink 
Energy, Y-Gen and 
Blue-Gen

• OHS Safety strategy 
and awareness.

• Training and 
development 
programs

• Individual 
performance review 
and appraisals 

• Internal 
communication 
campaigns and 
themes

Communities We are committed 
to sustainable 
relationships with 
communities we 
operate in.

• Stakeholder 
Coordination 
Committee 
meetings

• Barazas/Town 
Halls

• Local Media 
• Flyers and 

Posters
• Road shows
• Invitation to key 

company events
• Surveys
• Letters 
• Telephone calls

• CSR support
• Involvements 

and 
consultations

• Economic 
opportunities 

• Climate 
change and 
environmental 
impacts

• Timely 
information 
regarding 
impending 
natural 
disturbances, 
e.g. floods

• partnerships

• Community 
investments

• Implementing 
the community 
engagement 
strategy

• Job opportunities
• Environment 

conservation 
programs

• Stakeholder 
coordination 
committee 
meetings

Our Stakeholders: What Matters to Them 
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Who we Are

Corporate Information

Stakeholder Why this 
stakeholder is 
important to us

How we engage What Matters to 
our stakeholders

How we respond to 
them

Suppliers KenGen values 
good relationships 
with our suppliers 
because they are 
essential to an 
efficient, productive, 
and secure supply 
chain. 

• Virtual and 
physical 
Sensitization 
workshops

• Letters
• Supplier reviews
• Strategic 

partnerships
• procurement 

Advertisements
• Karibu Centre
• Survey
• Meetings

• Economic 
opportunities

• Productivity/
quality/cost

• Sustainable 
procurement

• Health and 
safety

• Supplier code of 
conduct

• Public 
announcement 
of business 
opportunities

• E- procurement 
platform

• Implementing 
the Principle of 
value for money in 
procurement

Media To enhance our 
brand, we are 
committed to 
strategic media 
engagement and 
partnership in telling 
the company’s 
story to our diverse 
stakeholders

• Media 
Roundtables

• Editorial Opinion 
• Focus Group 

Discussions.
• Brownbag 

meetings
• Press Releases/ 

media 
statements.

• Media 
interviews

• Press Briefing
• Media tours
• Partnership and 

collaboration 

Critical 
information 
relevant to the 
public:
• New 

developments 
within the 
organization

• Relevant 
updates

• Clarification on 
emerging issues

• KenGen’s 
financial status

  Continuous 
Involvement, 
engagement, 
and 
consultation

• Press briefing 
• Focus Group 

Discussions 
• Media tour 

to KenGen 
Installations

• Invitation to KenGen 
events

• Energy Café
• Regional media 

workshops
• Period media 

interviews
• Editorial opinion

Our Stakeholders: What Matters to Them 
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Who we Are

Corporate Information

Stakeholder Why this 
stakeholder is 
important to us

How we engage What Matters to 
our stakeholders

How we respond to 
them

General Public KenGen is 
committed 
to providing 
uninterrupted and 
affordable power 
production to 
Kenyans. As we 
deliver energy for 
the nation, we
 are committed to 
the timely updates 
about the company 
to the public

• Mass media
• Social media
• Website
• Site visits and 

tours
• Flyers and 

brochures
• Advertisements
• Corporate 

Magazine
• Road shows
• Fairs and 

Exhibitions

• Assurance 
about 
uninterrupted 
and affordable 
power 
production

• Timely updates 
about the 
company

• KenGen 
financial 
performance

• Continuous 
generation reliable 
and affordable 
electricity 

• Public notices
• Media 

advertisements
• Documentaries
• Infomercials 
• Social media

Facility owners 
(dam owners)

Hydro- electricity 
has been KenGen’s 
mainstay for years 
through the dams, 
we will endeavour 
in maintaining them 
with the owners.

• Meetings
• Site visits
• Letters
• Technical 

Working Group

• Maintenance of 
dams

• Consultations 
and 
engagements

• Monitoring of dams 
• Dam repairs
• Reporting on dam 

status.
• Consultation 

meetings

Civil society As company we 
shall endeavour 
to operate and act 
in a manner that 
promotes public 
good through 
transparency in our 
operations

• Site visits
• One-on-One 

meetings
• Letters/ Emails
• Round tables
• Survey

Public good
Transparency
Public interest

• Observing Public 
interest and good 
through public 
participation 
and consultation 
programs

• Membership 
to Stakeholder 
coordination 
Committees

Other sector 
players,
Industries, 
large power 
consumers

As we generate 
electricity KenGen 
reassures the 
manufacturers and 
industry continuous 
energy production 
through our robust 
measures in place, 
explore areas 
of collaboration 
with industry and 
generate affordable 
power.

• Round table 
meetings

• Conferences 
and exhibition

• Media
• Letters
• Survey

• Continuous 
supply of 
uninterrupted 
electricity

• Affordable 
electricity

• Effective Running 
power plants to 
generate electricity. 

• Deployment 
of affordable 
electricity 
generating 
technologies.

• Building new power 
plants

• Holding round table 
meetings

Our Stakeholders: What Matters to Them 
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Corporate Information
BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit, Risk & 	 CPA Bernard Ngugi - (Chairperson)
Compliance Committee	 Mr. Kennedy Ondieki - Alternate Director to CS-National Treasury
	 Hon. Stephen Mutai  
	 Ms. Josephine Koisaba
	 Mr. Umuro Wario

Strategy Committee	 Eng. Frank Konuche - (Chairperson)
	 Mr. Chrispin Lupe - Alternate Director to PS-State Department for Energy
	 Mr. Umuro Wario
	 Mr. William Rahedi     
	 Eng. Peter Njenga

HR & Nomination 	 Hon. Rehema Hassan - (Chairperson)
Committee	 Eng. Frank Konuche
	 Ms. Josephine Koisaba
	 CPA Bernard Ngugi
	 Eng. Peter Njenga

Governance Advisory  	 Hon. Stephen Mutai - (Chairperson)
Committee	 Ms. Josephine Koisaba
	 Mr. Bernard Ngugi
	 Hon. Rehema Hassan 
	 Eng. Peter Njenga

Finance & Investment   	 Mr. William Rahedi - (Chairperson)
Committee	 Mr. Kennedy Ondieki - Alternate Director to CS-National Treasury
	 Mr. Chrispin Lupe - Alternate Director to PS-State Department for Energy
	 Eng. Frank Konuche
	 Eng. Peter Njenga
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60MW 
HYDRO

Sondu Miriu Hydro Power Station



23KenGen
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2025

01

BOARD LEADERSHIP
& GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s Statement......................................................  24

Ujumbe kutoka kwa Mwenyekiti ...................................... 28

Message from the Managing Director and CEO.............. 34

Ujumbe wa Mkurugenzi Mkuu na Afisa Mkuu Mtendaji.. 36



KenGen
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2025

24

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT: GENERATING VALUE

Our operating landscape over the 
reporting period was shaped by the 
preceding year’s real GDP growth of 
4.7%, underpinned by a rebound in 
agriculture, infrastructure investment, 
and expanding industrial activity.

Dear Shareholders,
It is with great pleasure that I, on behalf 
of the Board, extend a warm welcome 
to you, our esteemed shareholders, as 
we share KenGen’s performance journey 
for the financial year ended 30th June 
2025. This report invites you to reflect 
on the significant milestones we have 
achieved and the challenges we have 
navigated, underscoring our unwavering 
commitment to accountability, 
sustainability, and long-term value 
creation for all our stakeholders.

This year marks my first address to 
you as Chairman of the Company, an 
honour and responsibility I embrace with 
deep humility. I take this opportunity to 
sincerely appreciate my predecessors, 
whose leadership laid a solid foundation 
on which we continue to build as we 
steer KenGen into the next phase of 
growth and transformation.

Our operating landscape over the 
reporting period was shaped by the 
preceding year’s real GDP growth of 
4.7%, underpinned by a rebound in 
agriculture, infrastructure investment, 
and expanding industrial activity. This 
economic momentum continues to fuel 
rising energy demand across the country. 
National peak demand has jumped by 
9.9% to 2,392 MW from the previous 
year, reinforcing KenGen’s pivotal role 
in ensuring reliable and sustainable 
electricity supply to power Kenya’s 
economic transformation.

Generating Growth
The Company is not only focused 
on developing our country but 
is also keen to play the role of 
the good neighbour, sharing our 
vast knowledge and experiences 

HON. ALFRED AGOI
Chairman of the Board

01from the previous 
year, reinforcing 
KenGen’s pivotal 
role in ensuring 
reliable and 
sustainable 
electricity supply.

2,392MW

GDP growth 
underpinned by a 
rebound in agriculture, 
infrastructure 
investment, and 
expanding industrial 
activity.

4.7%
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in the hydro and geothermal spaces. 
Having contributed to placing Kenya 
on the geothermal global map, we 
are involved in collaborating with our 
neighbours to harness the sustainable 
resource that is an ingredient 
for regional growth. As a tested 
geothermal lead, and with the Great 
Rift Valley spanning almost 7,000km 
across ten neighbouring countries, 
we are primed to drive the increase of 
the sustainable energy that is required 
to power the continent. Our footprint, 
previously in Rwanda, Comoros, South 
Sudan and Ethiopia, was extended 
to Djibouti, Tanzania and Eswatini in 
this reporting period, with geothermal 
studies and potential drilling services 
opening new frontiers to power the 
continent. I take this opportunity to 
laud our local and regional partners 
in geothermal development for 
putting their trust, and money, into the 
technical acumen that KenGen offers.

Generating Power
The Company’s zeal for operational 
excellence is well known, with our 
power plants, driven by an equally 
energized management team, 
generating at optimal availability to 
ensure Kenya is powered adequately. 
To ensure this momentum is 
maintained, the Company took time to 
step back, align our current position 
with future aspirations, and crafted a 
strategic roadmap to guide our path to 
continued success. Our Good to Great 
2034 Strategy, developed following 
local and international consultation, 
revolves around renewal – renewal 
of our operational fleet; renewal of 
our financing models; renewal of 
how, when and with whom we do our 
business.

Generating Environmental 
Stewardship
As a renewable energy leader 
and champion, KenGen remains 
deeply committed to environmental 

stewardship as an integral part of our business, with 
95% of electricity dispatched to the grid in the year 
2024-2025 being from renewable geothermal, hydro 
and wind sources. Beyond that, we continue to play 
a significant role in protecting and restoring water 
catchment areas in the country. Our conservation 
efforts are designed to safeguard natural resources 
while delivering ecological and socio-economic 
benefits to the communities we serve.

In support of the national government’s initiative to 
plant 15 billion trees over the next decade, KenGen 
planted a total of 887,220 tree seedlings during the 
year, surpassing our annual target of 830,000 by 
7%. This achievement reaffirms our commitment to 
climate action and environmental restoration, and 
positions KenGen as a key contributor to Kenya’s 
green future.

Generating Strategic Engagements
KenGen appreciates stakeholders as being core 
to the Company’s growth, sustainability, and long-
term success. We have enhanced collaboration 
and responsiveness with all our stakeholders and 
developed engagement strategies that reflect the 
unique roles and expectations of each stakeholder 
group. 

Our engagement efforts are driven by transparency, 
accountability, and mutual value creation. By 
fostering open communication and strategic 
partnerships, we ensure that our stakeholders remain 
confident in our ability to deliver sustainable energy 
solutions that support Kenya’s development goals. 
During the year, we hosted some shareholders in 
Olkaria, the home of geothermal in Africa. This visit 
gave our shareholders firsthand exposure to the scale 
and sophistication of the Company’s geothermal 
operations.

Our cordial relationships with local communities 
remain vital to building trust, resilience, and our social 
license to operate, while playing a role in entrenching 
economic empowerment in the country. In the year to 
date, procurement opportunities worth KShs 10.087 
billion were awarded to local-owned companies, with 
KShs 2.228 billion awarded to companies operated 
by Youth, Women and Persons with Disabilities. 
These opportunities, go a long way toward promoting 
the local economy, both directly and indirectly. Our 
engagement with financial partners, regulators and 

02

03

04
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other strategic partners remains the 
bedrock of our current and future 
success.

Generating Return
The Company delivered a resilient 
performance for the year ended 
30 June 2025, supported by a 
diversified generation mix, the 
recommissioning of the Muhoroni 
Power Plant in October 2024, and 
favourable hydrology. While lower 
geothermal output slowed growth in 
unit sales, higher thermal and hydro 
generation cushioned the impact. 
Strong cost control, disciplined 
capital management, and revenue 
diversification reinforced profitability 
and operational stability.

The Company maintained overall revenue levels, 
which saw total revenue decline slightly from KShs 
56,297 million in the previous year to KShs 56,098 
million in 2025. The Profit Before Tax rose from KShs 
10,947 million in 2024 to KShs 15,473 million in 2025. 
Similarly, Profit After Tax grew by 54%, rising from 
KShs 6,797 million in 2024 to KShs 10,481 million in 
2025. 

Dividends
The Board of Directors is pleased to propose a final 
dividend of KShs 0.90 per share for the financial year 
ended 30th June 2025. This proposal underscores 
the Company’s continued commitment to enhancing 
shareholder value while ensuring adequate resources 
are retained to support ongoing investments in 
generation capacity growth and operational efficiency 
improvements.

06

Generating Hope
As we stride into the future, I assure you of the Company’s commitment to excellence. We are bound, 
by our promise to you as our shareholders to Jenga KenGen, Inua Mapato. Once again, I extend our 
hearty thanks to all the stakeholders who have stood by us in the past year. To all our suppliers, 
financiers, and communities living around our installations, as well as to our dedicated employees, my 
esteemed Board and you our shareholders, I celebrate your belief in the KenGen dream. Together, we 
shall indeed green our grid. Asante.

Hon. Alfred Agoi
Chairman of the Board
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TAARIFA YA MWENYEKITI:
KUZALISHA THAMANI

Mandhari ya kiutendaji katika kipindi 
hiki iliundwa na ukuaji wa Pato Halisi 
la Taifa (GDP) kwa asilimia 4.7 mwaka 
uliotangulia, uliosukumwa na kuimarika 
kwa sekta ya kilimo, uwekezaji katika 
miundombinu na upanuzi wa shughuli za 
viwandani.

Kwa Wanahisa,
Kwa furaha kubwa, mimi, kwa niaba ya 
Bodi ya Wakurugenzi, nawakaribisha 
kwa moyo mkunjufu, wanahisa wetu 
wapendwa, tunapowasilisha safari ya 
utendaji wa KenGen kwa mwaka wa 
kifedha uliomalizika tarehe 30 Juni 
2025. Ripoti hii inawaalika kutafakari 
kuhusu mafanikio makubwa tuliyoyapata 
na changamoto tulizokabiliana nazo, 
ikisisitiza kujitolea kwetu thabiti kwa 
uwajibikaji, uendelevu na uundaji wa 
thamani ya muda mrefu kwa washikadau 
wetu wote.

Mwaka huu unaashiria hotuba yangu 
ya kwanza kwenu kama Mwenyekiti wa 
Kampuni, heshima na jukumu ambalo 
nalikubali kwa unyenyekevu mkubwa. 
Ninatumia fursa hii kuwashukuru kwa 
dhati watangulizi wangu, ambao uongozi 
wao uliweka msingi imara tunaoujengea 
tunapoipeleka KenGen katika awamu 
inayofuata ya ukuaji na mabadiliko.

Mandhari ya kiutendaji katika kipindi 
hiki iliundwa na ukuaji wa Pato Halisi 
la Taifa (GDP) kwa asilimia 4.7 mwaka 
uliotangulia, uliosukumwa na kuimarika 
kwa sekta ya kilimo, uwekezaji katika 
miundombinu na upanuzi wa shughuli 
za viwandani. Mwendo huu chanya wa 
uchumi unaendelea kuongeza mahitaji 
ya nishati kote nchini. Kiwango cha 
juu cha kitaifa cha mahitaji ya umeme 
kimeongezeka kwa asilimia 9.9 hadi 
megawati 2,392 ikilinganishwa na 
mwaka uliopita, jambo linalothibitisha 
nafasi kuu ya KenGen katika kuhakikisha 
upatikanaji wa umeme wa kutegemewa 
na endelevu unaochochea mabadiliko ya 
kiuchumi ya Kenya.

Kuzalisha Ukuaji
Kampuni haijajikita tu katika 
kukuza nchi yetu, bali pia 
imejipanga kuchukua nafasi ya 
jirani mwema, kwa kushirikisha 
maarifa na uzoefu wake mkubwa 
katika sekta za umeme wa maji 

MHESHIMIWA ALFRED AGOI
Mwenyekiti wa Bodi

01
4.7%

Kiwango cha juu 
cha kitaifa cha 
mahitaji ya umeme 
kimeongezeka kwa 
asilimia 9.9 hadi 
megawati 2,392 
ikilinganishwa na 
mwaka uliopita

2,392MW

Mandhari ya kiutendaji 
katika kipindi hiki 
iliundwa na ukuaji wa 
Pato Halisi la Taifa 
(GDP) kwa asilimia 4.7 
mwaka uliotangulia
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na jotoardhi. Tukiwa tumesaidia 
kuiweka Kenya kwenye ramani ya 
dunia katika nishati ya jotoardhi, 
sasa tunashirikiana na majirani 
wetu kutumia rasilimali hii endelevu 
inayoweza kuwa kichocheo cha 
ukuaji wa kieneo. Kama kinara 
aliyethibitishwa katika sekta ya 
jotoardhi na Bonde Kuu la Ufa likienea 
kwa takriban kilomita 7,000 kupitia 
nchi kumi jirani, tuko katika nafasi 
nzuri ya kusukuma mbele ongezeko 
la nishati endelevu inayohitajika 
kuendesha bara la Afrika. Uwepo wetu, 
ambao hapo awali ulikuwa Rwanda, 
Komoro, Sudan Kusini na Ethiopia, 
umeongezwa hadi Djibouti, Tanzania 
na Eswatini katika kipindi hiki, kupitia 
tafiti za jotoardhi na huduma za 
uchimbaji zinazofungua upeo mpya 
wa kuipa bara hili nguvu za nishati. 
Ninachukua fursa hii kuwapongeza 
washirika wetu wa kieneo na wa 
kikanda katika maendeleo ya nishati 
ya jotoardhi kwa kuonyesha imani na 
kuwekeza katika umahiri wa kiufundi 
unaotolewa na KenGen.

Kuzalisha Nguvu
Shauku ya Kampuni katika ubora wa 
uendeshaji inatambulika vyema, kwa 
kuwa mitambo yetu ya kuzalisha 
umeme, ikiongozwa na timu ya 
usimamizi yenye ari, inazalisha kwa 
ufanisi wa hali ya juu kuhakikisha kuwa 
Kenya inapata umeme wa kutosha. Ili 
kuhakikisha kuwa kasi hii inaendelea, 
Kampuni ilitenga muda wa kutathmini 
upya mwelekeo wake wa sasa, 
kuulinganisha na malengo ya baadaye 
na kuandaa ramani ya kimkakati ya 
kuongoza safari yetu ya mafanikio 
endelevu. Mkakati wetu wa Good to 
Great wa 2034, uliotengenezwa kupitia 
mashauriano ya kitaifa na kimataifa, 
unajikita katika dhana ya upyaishaji 
- upyaishaji wa mitambo yetu ya 
uzalishaji; upyaishaji wa mifumo yetu 
ya ufadhili; na upyaishaji wa mbinu, 
muda na washirika tunaofanya nao 
biashara.

Kuzalisha Utunzaji wa Mazingira
Kama kinara na mtetezi wa nishati 
mbadala, KenGen inabaki kujitolea 
kikamilifu katika utunzaji wa mazingira 

kama sehemu muhimu ya biashara yake, ambapo 
asilimia 95 ya umeme ulioingizwa kwenye gridi katika 
mwaka wa 2024–2025 ulitokana na vyanzo vya 
jotoardhi, maji na upepo. Zaidi ya hapo, tunaendelea 
kuchukua jukumu muhimu katika kulinda na 
kurejesha maeneo ya vyanzo vya maji nchini. Juhudi 
zetu za uhifadhi zimeundwa kulinda rasilimali asilia 
huku zikitoa manufaa ya kiikolojia na kijamii-kiuchumi 
kwa jamii tunazohudumia.

Katika mwaka huu, tuliimarisha miradi yetu ya 
kimazingira, tukizingatia zaidi upandaji miti upya, 
urejeshaji wa ardhi na uhifadhi wa bioanuwai. Juhudi 
hizi zinachangia moja kwa moja katika kupunguza 
gesi chafuzi angani na kuongeza uwezo wa Kenya 
kukabiliana na mabadiliko ya tabianchi. Kwa 
kulinganisha shughuli zetu na malengo ya kitaifa na 
ya kimataifa ya uendelevu, tunaendelea kuthibitisha 
kwamba nishati safi na uwajibikaji wa kimazingira 
vinaweza kwenda sambamba.

Kwa kuunga mkono mpango wa Serikali ya Kitaifa 
wa kupanda miti bilioni 15 katika kipindi cha muongo 
mmoja ujao, KenGen ilipanda jumla ya miche 887,220 
ya miti katika mwaka huu, ikizidi lengo letu la kila 
mwaka la miche 830,000 kwa asilimia 7. Mafanikio 
haya yanathibitisha upya dhamira yetu kwa hatua za 
kukabiliana na mabadiliko ya tabianchi na urejeshaji 
wa mazingira na yanaiweka KenGen kama mchangiaji 
mkuu katika mustakabali wa kijani wa Kenya.

Kujenga Ushirikiano wa Kimkakati
KenGen inatambua washikadau kama kiini cha 
ukuaji, uendelevu na mafanikio ya muda mrefu ya 
Kampuni. Tumeimarisha ushirikiano na mwitikio 
wetu kwa washikadau wote na kuendeleza mikakati 
ya ushirikishwaji inayozingatia nafasi na matarajio 
mahsusi ya kila kundi la washikadau. 

Juhudi zetu za ushirikiano zinaongozwa na uwazi, 
uwajibikaji na uundaji wa thamani ya pande zote. 
Kwa kukuza mawasiliano ya wazi na ushirikiano wa 
kimkakati, tunahakikisha kuwa washikadau wetu 
wanaendelea kuwa na imani na uwezo wetu wa 
kutoa suluhu endelevu za nishati zinazounga mkono 
malengo ya maendeleo ya Kenya. Katika mwaka huu, 
tulikaribisha baadhi ya wanahisa kutembelea Olkaria, 
kituo kikuu cha nishati ya jotoardhi barani Afrika. 
Ziara hii iliwapa wanahisa wetu fursa ya kuona kwa 
macho ubora na ukubwa wa shughuli za uzalishaji wa 
nishati ya jotoardhi za Kampuni.

Mahusiano yetu mazuri na jamii za kieneo 
yanaendelea kuwa muhimu katika kujenga uaminifu, 
uimara na ruhusa ya kijamii ya kuendesha shughuli, 
huku yakichangia katika kukuza uwezeshaji wa 
kiuchumi nchini. Katika mwaka huu wa kifedha, fursa 
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Taarifa ya Mwenyekiti

za ununuzi wa bidhaa na huduma 
zenye thamani ya shilingi bilioni 
10.087 zilitolewa kwa kampuni 
zinazomilikiwa na Wakenya, ambapo 
shilingi bilioni 2.228 zilitolewa kwa 
kampuni zinazoendeshwa na Vijana, 
Wanawake na Watu Wenye Ulemavu. 
Fursa hizi zimechangia pakubwa 
katika kukuza uchumi wa kieneo, 
moja kwa moja na kwa njia zisizo za 
moja kwa moja. Uhusiano wetu na 
washirika wa kifedha, wadhibiti na 
washikadau wengine wa kimkakati 
unabaki kuwa muhimu kwa 
mafanikio yetu ya sasa na yajayo.

Kuzalisha Thamani kwa Wanahisa
Kampuni ilionyesha utendaji imara 
kwa mwaka ulioisha tarehe 30 Juni 
2025, ikisaidiwa na mchanganyiko 
mpana wa uzalishaji, kuanza upya 
kwa Kiwanda cha Umeme cha 
Muhoroni mnamo Oktoba 2024 na 

hali nzuri ya vyanzo vya maji. Ingawa uzalishaji wa 
nishati ya jotoardhi ulipungua na kupunguza ukuaji 
wa mauzo kwa vitengo, ongezeko la uzalishaji 
wa umeme wa mafuta na maji liliisaidia kampuni 
kuhimili athari hiyo. Udhibiti madhubuti wa gharama, 
usimamizi mzuri wa mtaji na kuwa na vyanzo 
mbalimbali vya mapato viliongeza faida na uthabiti 
wa kiutendaji.

Kampuni iliendelea kudumisha kiwango cha jumla 
cha mapato, ambapo mapato yote yalipungua kidogo 
kutoka shilingi milioni 56,297 mwaka uliopita hadi 
shilingi milioni 56,098 mwaka 2025. Faida Kabla ya 
Ushuru iliongezeka kutoka shilingi milioni 10,947 
katika mwaka wa 2024 hadi shilingi milioni 15,473 
katika mwaka wa 2025. Vivyo hivyo, Faida Baada ya 
Ushuru ilikua kwa asilimia 54, ikipanda kutoka shilingi 
milioni 6,797 katika mwaka wa 2024 hadi shilingi 
milioni 10,481 katika mwaka wa 2025. 

Mgao wa Faida
Bodi ya Wakurugenzi inapendekeza mgao wa mwisho 
wa faida wa shilingi 0.90 kwa kila hisa kwa mwaka 

wa kifedha ulioisha tarehe 30 Juni 2025. Pendekezo hili linaonyesha dhamira endelevu ya Kampuni 
ya kuongeza thamani kwa wanahisa huku ikihakikisha kuwa rasilimali za kutosha zinabaki kusaidia 
uwekezaji unaoendelea katika kuongeza uwezo wa uzalishaji na kuboresha ufanisi wa uendeshaji.

Kuzalisha Tumaini
Tunapoelekea katika siku za usoni, ninawahakikishia dhamira ya Kampuni ya kuendeleza ubora. 
Tumejizatiti, kwa ahadi yetu kwenu kama wanahisa wetu ya Jenga KenGen, Inua Mapato. Kwa mara 
nyingine tena, nawashukuru kwa dhati washikadau wote waliotuunga mkono katika mwaka uliopita. 
Kwa wauzaji wetu wote, wafadhili na jamii zinazoishi karibu na vituo vyetu, pamoja na wafanyakazi 
wetu wanaojitolea, Bodi yangu niliyoheshimu na ninyi wanahisa wetu, ninafurahia imani yenu katika 
ndoto ya KenGen. Pamoja, kwa hakika, tutaifanya gridi yetu kuwa safi zaidi. Asante.

Mheshimiwa Alfred Agoi
Mwenyekiti wa Bodi
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financing for our near-term project 
pipeline of 253 MW, a key milestone 
in progressing these projects to 
implementation.  
  
Over the years, KenGen has built 
world-class expertise in geothermal 
exploration and drilling, capabilities 
that have not only propelled Kenya 
to the forefront of renewable energy 
development but have also earned 
global recognition. We extended 
our geothermal exploration services 
beyond our borders to Eswatini, 
where we conducted geothermal 
exploration studies. Gazettement 
of our Green Energy Park in Olkaria 
as a Special Economic Zone (SEZ) 
was a great achievement in the year. 
This milestone moves us closer to 
our vision of turning Olkaria into 
a hub for sustainable industrial 
development. 

Our People: 
The Power Behind Our Progress
At KenGen, our people are the true 
stars that light our nation. Their 
skills, creativity, and innovative 
spirit have enabled the Company to 
thrive generation after generation, 
cementing our leadership in 
provision of renewable energy 
solutions. We recognize that talent 
development is the foundation of our 
success, and we continue to invest 
in nurturing and empowering our 
workforce.

We commend our team for the 
professionalism, excellence, 
and resilience they consistently 
demonstrate in their work. Their 
dedication continues to inspire 
confidence among our stakeholders, 
drive innovation in our operations, 
and reinforce KenGen’s role as 
a trusted partner in powering 
sustainable growth.

Operational Excellence
Proficient operation of our power generating units, 
under 24-hour maintenance regimes, contributed 
8,482GWh representing 59% of the power consumed 
by Kenyans, notwithstanding various challenges in 
our operation. Our spread across the country ensures 
regional balance in exploitation of national resources 
while providing grid balance. By optimizing our hydro 
resources, we ensured that our hydropower plants 
operated efficiently and consistently throughout the 
year.

Leveraging on our geothermal expertise, we 
successfully drilled several makeup wells in the 
Olkaria geothermal field in 2025. We remain 
committed to the sustainable management of the 
reservoir while ensuring sufficient steam supply 
to support the continuous operation of our power 
plants.

In 2025, KenGen solidified its position as a leader 
in digital transformation within Kenya’s energy 
sector by winning the prestigious “Best Public 
Sector Digital Innovation in Energy & ICT” award, 
recognizing its innovative use of IoT technology to 
optimize geothermal power operations and enhance 
sustainability. The Company also advanced its 
digital infrastructure with investments in high-speed 
connectivity and renewable energy-powered backup 
systems, ensuring operational resilience.

Financial Performance
The Company’s revenue remained broadly stable at 
KShs 56,098 million compared to KShs 56,297 million 
in the prior year. This performance was influenced 
by a 2.0% decline in electricity revenue and a 17.9% 
decrease in steam revenue, which were, however, 
offset by a 21.3% increase in fuel revenue from 
thermal operations. The growth in fuel revenue was 
attributable to higher dispatch from the Kipevu III 
Power Plant and the resumption of generation at the 
Muhoroni Power Plant in October 2024. Revenue from 
diversification sources also recorded a significant 
increase of 235.4%, primarily driven by the completion 
of consultancy assignments in Eswatini during the 
year under review. As a result, Profit Before Tax rose 
by 41.3% to KShs 15,473 million, while Profit After Tax 
increased by 54.0% to KShs 10,481 million.
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KenGen Managing Director & CEO Eng. Peter Njenga and General Manager, Commercial Services during the launch of the Green Energy 
informercial

Sustainability; Towards 100% Renewables
KenGen has made remarkable strides in 
advancing Kenya’s 100% renewable energy 
transition and sustainability agenda. During 
the year, our share of renewable electricity 
supplied to the national grid increased from 
93% to 95%. This milestone highlights our 
contribution to the Government’s strong 
commitment of achieving a future powered 
entirely by renewable energy. We are proud 
to be leading this transformative journey 
toward a sustainable energy future.

Beyond our operational achievements, 
KenGen continues to play a pivotal role 
in advancing Kenya’s decarbonization 
agenda. We actively engage in strategic 
partnerships with both public and private 
sector stakeholders to promote policies that 
strengthen the country’s climate resilience. 
Committed to environmental stewardship, 

we drive innovation in conservation and 
collaborate closely with local communities to 
protect and restore forests and water towers. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
We have continued to work with our 
stakeholders, including government bodies, 
regulators, investors, development partners, 
and local communities. By building trust 
and fostering strong relationships, we are 
making sure our business initiatives are 
supported by a strong policy and regulatory 
environment, while also meeting stakeholder 
expectations.

Future Outlook
Looking ahead, we are well positioned to 
fast-track key renewable energy projects 
that will anchor the delivery of our G2G 2034 
Strategy. Our near-term pipeline, totalling 253 
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MW, is progressing steadily. This includes 
the 63 MW Olkaria I Rehabilitation Project 
and the 42.5 MW Seven Forks Solar Project. 
In the western region, the Gogo Hydro Power 
Plant upgrade will boost capacity from 2 
MW to 8.6 MW, enhancing grid stability and 
supporting local growth. 

We remain dedicated to maintaining high 
plant availability and reliability to ensure 
Kenya’s energy security and support the 
country’s industrialization agenda. By 
optimizing operations, investing in world 
class maintenance strategies, and leveraging 
our technical expertise, we aim to provide 
reliable and competitively priced electricity. 
We are looking forward to partnering with 
Geothermal Development Company (GDC) 
on Geothermal expansion on Paka and 
Silali Geothermal fields. This focus not 
only strengthens the national grid but also 
underpins sustainable development, enabling 
businesses to thrive and contributing to the 
broader socio-economic growth of Kenya.

Diversification remains a key strategic focus 
for us. We have been establishing operations 
in Ngozi, Tanzania, to provide specialized 
geothermal drilling services. This expansion 
showcases our technical expertise and 
industry leadership in geothermal energy and 
also positions the Company to tap into new 
regional markets. We will continue to drive 
our transformation initiatives to realize the 
objectives of the KenGen G2G 2034 Strategy. 
By embedding these initiatives across our 
workforce, processes, and technology, we 
aim to enhance efficiency, reinforce our 
market leadership, and achieve sustainable 
growth. This steadfast commitment ensures 
that KenGen remains agile, future-ready, and 
well-positioned to deliver lasting value to our 
stakeholders while leading Kenya’s energy 
transition.

Together, these initiatives will expand 
national capacity, diversify the energy 
mix, and deliver sustainable value for our 
shareholders while accelerating the country’s 
clean energy transition.

Appreciation
Our outstanding performance in the year 
is a testament to the power of partnership. 
This achievement was made possible by 
the unwavering collaboration, respect, 
and engagement of every one of our 
stakeholders, underscoring our shared 
commitment to success. 

I express my sincere gratitude to you, 
our shareholders, the Government of 
Kenya, development partners and other 
stakeholders for their support throughout 
the year that has been pivotal to our shared 
success. I extend my sincere gratitude to 
our Board of Directors for their insightful 
leadership and unwavering support. Their 
strategic guidance has been instrumental in 
steering the Company throughout the year.

To my colleagues, the KenGen family, 
your dedication to our corporate theme 
Jenga KenGen, Inua Mapato, has been 
truly inspiring. Our collective efforts have 
demonstrated that when we have a clear 
vision and mission, we deliver and for that 
I extend my heartfelt appreciation to each 
of you. Together we are shaping a brighter, 
sustainable future for KenGen, Kenya, Africa 
and the world. 

Eng. Peter Njenga
Managing Director and CEO
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Katika mwaka huu, tuliendelea na 
ujenzi wa mradi wa ukarabati wa 
Olkaria I ambao umefikia asilimia 
74 ya ukamilifu. Tumepata ufadhili 
kwa miradi yetu ya muda mfupi 
yenye jumla ya megawati 253, hatua 
muhimu katika kusogeza miradi hii 
kuelekea utekelezaji.  
  
Kwa miaka mingi, KenGen 
imejijengea umahiri wa kimataifa 
katika uchunguzi na uchimbaji wa 
nishati ya jotoardhi, uwezo ambao 
umeisukuma Kenya kuwa kwenye 
mstari wa mbele katika maendeleo 
ya nishati mbadala na kupata 
utambuzi duniani kote. Mwaka wa 
2025, tuliupanua utoaji wa huduma 
zetu za uchunguzi wa jotoardhi nje 
ya mipaka ya nchi hadi Eswatini, 
ambako tulifanya tafiti za utafutaji 
wa nishati ya jotoardhi. Kutangazwa 
rasmi kwa Hifadhi yetu ya Nishati 
Safi huko Olkaria kuwa Eneo Maalum 
la Kiuchumi (SEZ) kulikuwa ni 
mafanikio makubwa katika mwaka 
huu. Hatua hii imetukaribisha zaidi 
kwenye dira yetu ya kuibadilisha 
Olkaria kuwa kituo cha maendeleo 
endelevu ya viwanda. 

Watu Wetu: 
Nguvu Zinazoendesha Maendeleo 
Yetu
Katika KenGen, watu wetu ndio 
nyota wa kweli wanaoliangaza 
taifa letu. Ujuzi wao, ubunifu na 
roho ya uvumbuzi zimeiwezesha 
Kampuni kustawi kizazi baada ya 
kizazi na kudumisha uongozi wetu 
katika utoaji wa suluhisho za nishati 
mbadala. Tunatambua kuwa ukuzaji 
wa vipaji ndio msingi wa mafanikio 
yetu na tunaendelea kuwekeza katika 
kuwawezesha wafanyakazi wetu.

Tunawapongeza wafanyakazi wetu 
kwa weledi, ubora na ustahimilivu 
wanaouonyesha mara kwa mara 
katika kazi zao. Bidii yao inaendelea 
kuwatia washikadau wetu moyo, 
kuchochea ubunifu katika shughuli 
zetu na kuimarisha nafasi ya KenGen 

kama mshirika anayeaminika katika kuendesha ukuaji 
endelevu.

Ubora wa Uendeshaji
Uendeshaji wenye ufanisi wa mitambo yetu ya 
kuzalisha umeme, chini ya ratiba za matengenezo za 
saa 24, uliwezesha uzalishaji wa gigawati 8,482 kwa 
kila saa, sawa na asilimia 59 ya umeme unaotumika 
na Wakenya, licha ya changamoto mbalimbali katika 
shughuli zetu. Uwepo wetu katika maeneo mbalimbali 
nchini unahakikisha usawa wa kieneo katika 
matumizi ya rasilimali za taifa huku tukidumisha 
uwiano wa gridi ya taifa. Kwa kuboresha matumizi 
ya vyanzo vyetu vya maji, tulihakikisha kwamba vituo 
vyetu vya kuzalisha umeme wa maji vilifanya kazi kwa 
ufanisi na kwa uthabiti mwaka mzima.

Kwa kutumia utaalamu wetu wa nishati ya jotoardhi, 
tulifanikiwa kuchimba visima kadhaa vya kuongeza 
mvuke katika eneo la Olkaria katika mwaka wa 2025. 
Tunaendelea kujitolea kusimamia kwa uendelevu 
hifadhi ya jotoardhi huku tukihakikisha upatikanaji 
wa mvuke wa kutosha kuendesha mitambo yetu bila 
usumbufu.

Utendaji wa Kifedha
Mapato ya Kampuni yalisalia kuwa thabiti kwa 
kiasi kikubwa yakifikia shilingi milioni 56,098 
ikilinganishwa na shilingi milioni 56,297 katika 
mwaka uliotangulia. Utendaji huu uliathiriwa na 
kushuka kwa asilimia 2.0 kwa mapato ya umeme na 
upungufu wa asilimia 17.9 katika mapato ya mvuke, 
ingawa hali hiyo ilifidiwa na ongezeko la asilimia 21.3 
la mapato kutoka kwenye uendeshaji wa mitambo 
ya mafuta. Ukuaji wa mapato ya mafuta ulitokana 
na uzalishaji wa juu kutoka Kiwanda cha Kipevu 
III na kurejea kwa uzalishaji katika Kiwanda cha 
Muhoroni mwezi Oktoba 2024. Mapato kutoka vyanzo 
mbalimbali pia yaliongezeka kwa kiasi kikubwa cha 
asilimia 235.4, hasa kutokana na kukamilika kwa 
kazi za ushauri nchini Eswatini katika mwaka huu. 
Matokeo Yake, Faida Kabla ya Ushuru iliongezeka 
kwa asilimia 41.3 hadi Shilingi milioni 15,473, huku 
Faida Baada ya Ushuru ikiongezeka kwa asilimia 54.0 
hadi Shilingi milioni 10,481.

Uendelevu: Kuelekea Nishati Mbadala  kwa Asilimia 
100
KenGen imepiga hatua kubwa katika kuendeleza 
ajenda ya Kenya ya mpito kuelekea nishati mbadala 
kwa asilimia 100 na maendeleo endelevu. Katika 
mwaka huu, sehemu ya umeme wa nishati mbadala 
tuliouingiza kwenye gridi ya taifa iliongezeka 
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Ujumbe wa Mkurugenzi Mkuu 
na Afisa Mtendaji Mkuu

KenGen Managing Director and CEO Eng. Peter Njenga and General Manager, Commercial Services during the launch of the Green Energy 
Informercial

kutoka asilimia 93 hadi asilimia 95. Hatua 
hii ni ushahidi wa mchango wetu katika 
kuunga mkono azma ya Serikali ya kufikia 
mustakabali unaoendeshwa kikamilifu kwa 
nishati mbadala. Tunajivunia kuongoza safari 
hii ya mabadiliko kuelekea mustakabali 
endelevu wa nishati.

Zaidi ya mafanikio yetu ya kiutendaji, KenGen 
inaendelea kushikilia jukumu muhimu katika 
kusukuma mbele ajenda ya upunguzaji wa 
hewa chafu nchini Kenya. Tunahusiana 
kikamilifu na washikadau wa sekta ya 
umma na binafsi katika kuendeleza sera 
zinazoongeza uwezo wa nchi kukabiliana na 
mabadiliko ya tabianchi. Tukiwa tumejitolea 
katika utunzaji wa mazingira, tunaendeleza 
ubunifu katika uhifadhi na kushirikiana kwa 
karibu na jamii za eneo husika kulinda na 
kurejesha misitu na vyanzo vya maji. Kupitia 
jitihada hizi, tunachangia katika kujenga 

msingi wa uchumi wenye kiwango kidogo 
cha kaboni, unaotoa manufaa endelevu kwa 
Wakenya wote. Athari zetu zinafika nje ya 
mipaka ya Kenya. Tumeendelea kushiriki 
kikamilifu katika mijadala ya kimataifa 
kuhusu nishati mbadala, tukitoa maarifa, 
tukijifunza kutoka kwa mbinu bora za 
kimataifa na kuimarisha nafasi ya Kenya 
kama kinara katika maendeleo ya nishati 
mbadala.

Mtazamo wa Baadaye
Tukiangazia mbele, tuko katika nafasi 
nzuri ya kuharakisha utekelezaji wa miradi 
muhimu ya nishati mbadala itakayowezesha 
kufikiwa kwa Mkakati wetu wa G2G 2034. 
Miradi yetu ya muda mfupi yenye jumla ya 
megawati 253 inaendelea kwa kasi nzuri. Hii 
inajumuisha Mradi wa Ukarabati wa Olkaria I 
wa megawati 63 na Mradi wa Nishati ya Jua 
wa Seven Forks wa megawati 42.5. Katika 
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Corporate Governance

Statement of 
Compliance

Statement 
of Directors 
Responsibilities

The Board of Directors is committed to mainstreaming and 
upholding the highest standards of corporate governance and 
ensuring compliance with applicable laws, regulations and best 
practice in every jurisdiction of operation. Fulfilling KenGen’s 
vision and mission necessitates Board members who epitomize 
professionalism, accountability, responsibility, integrity, passion, 
commitment, innovation, visionary and strategic thinking. 

Having dedicated themselves to KenGen’s 
service, the Board members are driven to deliver 
on shareholder value through dividends and 
optimal investment returns. This is realised 
by providing reliable electric energy through 
operational excellence and sustainable business 
practices. The Board members uphold the tenets 
of good corporate governance, demonstrating 
accountability, efficiency, responsibility, and 
transparency while conducting their duties with 
utmost integrity and fairness.

KenGen fully ascribes to continuing obligations 
as a listed company, in compliance with the 
Capital Markets Authority’s (CMA) Code 
of Governance for Issuers of Public Listed 
Securities, 2015. The Company also ascribes to 
the highest ethical standards prescribed in its 
Code of Conduct. The Board also subscribes 
to the principles of good corporate governance 
practices as well as provision of relevant statues 
including but not limited to the Energy Act, 
2019, Public Finance Management Act, 2012, 
Employment Act, 2007 and all other relevant 
laws, regulations, and guidelines.

KenGen in compliance with best global business 
practices implement International Standard 
Organization (ISO) standards including ISO 
9001:2015 Quality Management System, ISO 
14001:2015 Environmental Management 
System, ISO 450001:2018 Occupation Health 
and Safety in our business.

The Board serves as the focal point 
and custodian of corporate governance 
in the Company by providing strategic 
guidance and oversight. The Board shall 
establish clear roles and responsibilities 
in discharging its fiduciary and leadership 
functions. In exercising fiduciary duties, 
every member of the Board shall:

•	 Review periodic financial and 
governance statements

•	 Approve Annual Report, Company 
Financial Results and all public 
announcements 

•	 Put in place appropriate governance 
structures 

•	 Review and approve the Company’s 
Strategy, annual budget and 
procurement plan 

•	 Monitor business performance 
•	 Maintain effective framework of 

controls to mitigate risks 
•	 Exercise oversight and administer 

assets in a manner that best promotes 
the purpose for which the company 
was established 

•	 Enter into partnership with other bodies 
or organizations within or outside 
Kenya as it may deem appropriate 

•	 Authorize the opening of bank accounts 
for the Company’s funds 

•	 Approve material transactions 
•	 Review the effectiveness of risk 

management and internal control 
systems

The Company also 
ascribes to the highest 
ethical standards 
prescribed in its Code 
of Conduct.
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The Charter aligns 
with provisions of the 
Companies Act 2015, the 
Capital Markets Code of 
Public Offers and Listing 
Disclosures (POLD) 
regulations 2023.

Board Charter
KenGen Board Charter which 
is periodically reviewed and 
approved clearly outlines the roles, 
responsibilities of the Chairman, 
Directors and company secretary 
thereby reinforcing accountability 
and transparency within KenGen’s 
governance framework.

The Charter offers a platform for Board 
members to evaluate the alignment 
of strategic and operational plans of 
the Company. The Charter aligns with 
provisions of the Companies Act 2015, 
the Capital Markets Code of Public 
Offers and Listing Disclosures (POLD) 
regulations 2023, Mwongozo Code 
of Conduct for State Corporations, 
the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, amongst 
other rules and regulations.

Separation of Roles of the Board 
Chairman and Managing Director 
and CEO
KenGen upholds high standards of 
Corporate Governance by ensuring 
clear separation of roles of the 
Chairman and the Managing Director 
& CEO. This promotes effective 
checks and balances, with the 
Chairman providing independent 
leadership of the Board while the CEO 

oversees day-to-day management 
and operational execution. By defining 
these responsibilities, the Company 
strengthens oversight, enhances 
accountability, and fosters transparent 
decision-making that aligns with 
shareholder and stakeholder interests. 
A summary of the roles is as outlined 
below.

The Chairman 
i.	 Board Leadership and Governance: 

Provides overall leadership to 
the board, guiding its collective 
efforts while remaining mindful of 
individual director responsibilities. 
Ensures effective governance 
that includes, setting the ethical 
tone, promoting transparency, and 
facilitating optimal decision-making. 

ii.	Stakeholder Engagement and 
Representation: Ensures that the 
Board considers the interest of 
all stakeholders and shareholders 
while safeguarding the Company’s 
reputation and interests.

iii.	Collaboration and strategic 
Oversight: Facilitates open 
communication between the 
members of the Board and the 
Managing Director & CEO on all 
significant matters affecting the 
company and making sure that all 
key decisions are implemented.

The Managing Director & CEO
i.	 Strategic Leadership & Governance: 

Provide overall leadership, link the 
Board and Management, execute 
Board strategies, and ensure 
effective succession planning and 
organizational sustainability.

ii.	Operational & Financial 
Stewardship: Oversee day-to-day 
operations, manage assets and 
finances, ensure compliance with 
laws and governance frameworks, 
and safeguard efficient, transparent 
use of resources.

iii.	Communication, Innovation & 
Growth: Act as chief spokesperson, 
maintain stakeholder engagement, 
ensure effective information 

Corporate Governance

KenGen upholds high 
standards of Corporate 
Governance by ensuring 
clear separation of roles 
of the Chairman and the 
Managing Director & CEO.





KenGen
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2025

60

Corporate Governance

During the year, KenGen 
carried out a Corporate 
Governance audit and 
attained a score of 89%

Board Induction and 
Development	
The Directors are taken through a 
comprehensive tailored induction 
program covering the Company’s 
business, operations and regulatory 
framework. 

New Board members undergo a 
structured induction programme that 
equips them with knowledge of the 
Company’s operations, governance 
framework, regulatory environment, 
and energy generation modes. This 
includes key governance documents, 
site visits, and compliance with the 
CMA’s statutory training requirements.

In addition, the Company supports 
continuous professional development 
through ongoing training and 
education programmes, ensuring 
Directors remain updated on industry, 
market, and regulatory changes. This 
ongoing learning sharpens their skills, 
enabling them to effectively fulfil 
their roles and strengthen the Board’s 
overall governance capacity.

Board Evaluation
The Company, annually conducts 
Board Evaluation to measure their 
performance, effectiveness, and 
oversight role, including the fiduciary 
duties of individual members as set 
out in the Board Charter. The process 
involves a 360-degree evaluation 
conducted by the State Corporations 
Advisory Committee (SCAC).

Board Remuneration 
KenGen Non-Executive Directors 
fees and allowances for conducting 
official Company business are paid in 
accordance with the State Corporation 
Act, Salaries and remuneration 
commission and regular government 

circulars. The remuneration for the 
financial year ended 30th June 2025 is 
disclosed on Page 123 to 126 of this 
report.

Conflict of Interest and Declaration 
of Interest 
KenGen Board recognizes the 
importance of disclosure in any 
circumstance that may give rise to an 
actual or potential conflict of interest. 
To manage Conflict of Interest, the 
Board has a formal procedure in 
accordance with the Companies 
Act, KenGen Conflict of Interest 
Policy and other relevant laws that 
prescribes independent judgement 
and constructive engagement on all 
matters brought before the Board for 
deliberation. 

The Directors always act in the best 
interest of the organization and its 
stakeholders. Declaration of conflict of 
interest is adhered to by all Directors 
at the beginning of each Board and 
Board Committee meetings. The Board 
also requires all Directors to disclose 
on appointment and annually any 
circumstances which may give rise 
to any actual or potential conflict of 
interest.

Executive Committee (ExCo) 
The Executive Committee (ExCo), 
comprising of the Managing Director 
& CEO and General Managers, focuses 
on strategic and operational decisions 
at the highest management level. 
ExCo is responsible for implementing 
the Company’s strategic objectives, 
ensuring compliance with statutory 
and regulatory frameworks while 
upholding Company policies and 
procedures as well as driving the 
overall business performance.

89%

the Company supports 
continuous professional 
development through 
ongoing training and 
education programmes.
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Corporate Governance Audit
KenGen as a listed Company, conducts 
Corporate Governance Audits to 
measure the Company’s adherence 
to the relevant legal and regulatory 
framework relating to its operations, 
including the Constitution of Kenya, 
2010, the Energy Act 2019, the 
Companies Act, State Corporations 
Act, Employment Act, Procurement 
and Disposal Act, Capital Markets 
Act, Public Finance Management Act, 
Mwongozo Code of Conduct, tax-
related laws, regulations, government 
circulars CMA Code, the Mwongozo 
as well as internal policies and 
procedures. During the year, KenGen 
carried out a Corporate Governance 
audit and attained a score of 89% 
In addition, annually, KenGen 
undertakes the CMA governance 
assessment in accordance with 
the Capital Markets Code of Public 
Offers and Listing Disclosures (POLD) 
regulations 2023 where KenGen has 
consistently attained the coveted 
‘Leadership’ score.

Legal and Compliance Audit
KenGen’s risk management strategy 
seeks to mitigate the Company’s 
exposure to potential risks. The 
Company carries out a Legal and 
Compliance Audit biennially to 
establish compliance with statutory, 
regulatory and policy requirements as 
required by the Code of Governance 
for State Corporations (Mwongozo) 
and the Capital Markets Code of 
Public Offers and Listing Disclosures 
(POLD) regulations 2023 (CMA 
Code). 

The scope affirms how the Company 
and the Board observe and uphold 
good Corporate Governance 
practices in all its activities. KenGen 
carried out a legal and compliance 
audit and attained a score of 86% in 
2024 in compliance with the legal 
and regulatory requirements.

Company carries out a 
Legal and Compliance 
Audit biennially to 
establish compliance with 
statutory, regulatory and 
policy requirements.

KenGen undertakes the CMA governance 
assessment in accordance with the Capital Markets 
Code of Public Offers and Listing Disclosures 
(POLD) regulations 2023 where KenGen has 
consistently attained the coveted ‘Leadership’ score.

No. NAME NUMBER OF SHARES % HOLDING
1. Eng. Peter Njenga 1,748 0.00003
2. Hon. Stephen Mutai 3,309 0.00005
3. Eng. Frank Konuche 177,697 0.003

Individual Directors Shareholding
As at 30th June 2025, the following Directors held shares in the Company.

KenGen carried out a legal 
and compliance audit and 
attained a score of 86% in 
2024 in compliance with 
the legal and regulatory 
requirements.

86%
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Corporate Governance

Board Meetings

The Board adopts an Annual Work-Plan and calendar to guide on its meetings and ensure that adequate 
notice, agenda and Board papers are circulated within the stipulated timelines. The Board meets 
quarterly or when necessary to consider matters relating to the overall oversight of the business.

The Board held 14 meetings attended as follows:

NO.  	 NAME 	 ATTENDANCE	

1.	 Hon. Alfred Agoi	 14	

2.	 Eng. Peter Njenga	 14 

3.	 Ms. Josephine Koisaba	 14 	

4.	 Hon. Stephen Mutai	 14	

5.	 Mr. William Rahedi	 14	

6.	 Eng. Frank Konuche	 14	

7.	 CPA Bernard Ngugi	 14	
	
8.	 Mr. Umuro Wario	 14	

9.	 Hon. Rehema Hassan	 7

10.	 Mr. Kennedy Ondieki	 13	

11.	 Mr. Chrispin Lupe	 14	

Hon. Rehema Hassan was elected at the AGM on 28th November 2024.
Dr. Rosemarie Wanyoike retired at the AGM on 28th November 2024. 
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Board Committees 

To effectively execute its oversight role and diverse responsibilities, the Board has established five 
(5) standing committees with specific delegated mandates to provide invaluable insights and enhance 
Board’s capacity for informed decision making. The Board Committees are run with clearly articulated 
terms of reference as stipulated in the Board Charter.

Audit, Risk and 
Compliance 
Committee

Strategy 
Committee

Human Resource 
& Nomination 
Committee

Governance 
Advisory 
Committee

Finance & 
Investment 
Committee

CPA Bernard 
Ngugi (Chair)

Eng. Frank 
Konuche (Chair)

Hon. Rehema 
Hassan (Chair)

Hon. Stephen 
Mutai (Chair)  

Mr. William 
Rahedi (Chair)

Mr. Kennedy 
Ondieki 
(Alternate 
Director to the 
CS The National 
Treasury)

Mr. Chrispin O. 
Lupe (Alternate 
Director to PS-
State Department 
for Energy)

Eng. Frank 
Konuche

Ms. Josephine 
Koisaba

Mr. Kennedy 
Ondieki (Alternate 
Director to the 
CS The National 
Treasury)

Hon. Stephen 
Mutai

Mr. Umuro Wario Ms. Josephine 
Koisaba

CPA Bernard 
Ngugi

Mr. Chrispin O. 
Lupe (Alternate 
Director to PS-
State Department 
for Energy)

Ms. Josephine 
Koisaba

Mr. William 
Rahedi     

CPA Bernard 
Ngugi

Hon. Rehema 
Hassan

Eng. Frank 
Konuche

Mr. Umuro Wario Eng. Peter Njenga Eng. Peter Njenga Eng. Peter Njenga Eng. Peter Njenga
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Membership

The committee is led by an Independent Director, while the membership comprises of three (3) 
Independent & Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director. 

Attendance

No. NAME ATTENDANCE

1. CPA Bernard Ngugi (Chair) 6

2. Mr. Kennedy Ondieki (Alternate Director to the CS The 
National Treasury)

6

3. Hon. Stephen Mutai  6

4. Ms. Josephine Koisaba 6

5. Mr. Umuro Wario 6

Mandate
To assist the Board in areas of financial reporting and compliance with 
the applicable financial reporting standards, oversight of the Internal & 
External Audit function and the operating controls. Its functions include: 
•	 Review of financial reports and compliance with applicable financial 

reporting standards 
•	 Oversight of the company’s internal audit function 
•	 Review of financial and operational controls 
•	 Liaising with the External Auditors’ receiving and reviewing their 

reports and letters
•	 Monitoring compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
•	 Reviewing risk management issues within the company

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

CPA Bernard Ngugi 
(Chairperson)
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Strategy Committee

Eng. Frank Konuche  
(Chairperson)

Membership
The Committee comprises of three (3) Independent & Non-Executive Directors, one (1) Non-Executive 
Director and one (1) Executive Director. 

Attendance

No. NAME ATTENDANCE

1. Eng. Frank Konuche (Chair) 6

2. Mr. Chrispin O. Lupe (Alternate Director to PS-State 
Department for Energy)

6

3. Mr. Umuro Wario 6

4. Mr. William Rahedi 6

5. Eng. Peter Njenga 6

Mandate
•	 The Committee reviews and 

recommends to the Board matters 
pertaining to business strategic 
plan, investment decisions, annual 
business and financial plans and 
budgets. The functions include: - 

•	 Ensure that Strategy, Risk, 
Compliance, Performance and 
Sustainability considerations are 
effectively integrated, appropriately 
balanced by continually reviewing 
the Company’s Strategy and make 
appropriate recommendations to 
the Board on issues of strategy 
adjustment.

•	 Champion the application of 
technology and innovation in 
evolving business strategy and 
plans of the Company.

•	 Ensure strategy alignment 
with organizational goals and 
stakeholder expectations.

•	 Align the company’s strategy with 
long-term sustainability objectives.

•	 Review and focus on expanding the 
Company’s electricity generation 

market share for business 
sustainability. 

•	 Developing and reviewing the 
progress of the Company’s strategy 
execution and diversification plans 
including the identification of 
government priority projects.

•	 Guarantee the inclusion of projects 
pipeline in Least Cost Power 
Development Plan (LCPDP).

•	 Monitor the implementation of 
the Energy Act 2019 towards 
sustainability of the Company.

•	 Monitoring the innovation and 
research & development agenda of 
the Company.

•	 Marketing, evaluating and 
approving business cases for all 
categories of investment projects 
and new ventures including 
strategic partnerships within its 
delegated authority.

•	 Monitoring, evaluating and 
overseeing the Company health 
including the review of financial 
and business plans and the overall 
Company GOK Performance 
Contracting.

•	 Holding ad-hoc meetings 
(consultations) with strategic 
stakeholders, including, financiers, 
investors and other parties on 
matters within the Committee’s 
jurisdiction.

•	 Consider and provide timely 
support and rescue plan to derisk 
the business and operations of the 
Company.
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Human Resource & Nomination Committee

Membership
The Committee comprises of four (4) independent & non-executive Directors, and one (1) executive 
Director. 

Attendance

No. NAME ATTENDANCE

1. Hon. Rehema Hassan (Chair) 2

2. Eng. Frank Konuche 4

3. Ms. Josephine Koisaba 4

4. CPA Bernard Ngugi 4

5. Eng. Peter Njenga 4

Hon. Rehema Hassan 
(Chairperson)

Mandate
The Committee is responsible for 
appointment and reappointment 
to the Board and its committees, 
recruitment, and performance review 
of senior management. It also 
reviews human resources policies 
and company staff welfare and 
reward system. 

Human Resources Function 
The Committee continually 
reviews the organization structure, 
core functions and optimum 
establishment; policies and 
procedures on employee recruitment 
and selection, training and 
development policy for operational 
efficiency, of performance and 
reward system and capacity 
enhancement & review the terms 
and conditions of service in line with 
the organisation’s strategy. Further 
it reviews the Company’s Human 
Resource Policies and recommends 
any amendments to the Board for 
approval. 

Nominating Function 
The Committee supports and advice 
the Board on the appropriate size 
and composition that will enable 
it to discharge its responsibilities, 

transparent procedure for selecting 
new directors for appointment and 
reselection to the Board, evaluation 
of the performance of the Board, the 
various committees and individual 
Directors.

Remuneration Function 
The Committee reviews the 
Company’s remuneration, 
recruitment, retention, incentive 
and termination policies and 
procedures for General Managers 
and Managers; their basic salary & 
the criteria for payment of bonuses 
to all staff and monitor its operation, 
consider any recommendations of 
the Chairman or Managing Director/
CEO of the Company regarding 
payment of bonuses or performance 
related remuneration. 

Hon. Rehema Hassan was elected at the AGM on 28th November 2024.
Dr. Rosemarie Wanyoike retired at the AGM on 28th November 2024. 
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Governance Advisory Committee

Hon. Stephen Mutai  
(Chairperson)

Membership
The Governance Advisory Committee comprises of four (4) members of the Board with four (4) 
Independent & Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director. 

Attendance

No. NAME ATTENDANCE

1. Hon. Stephen Mutai (Chair) 5

2. Ms. Josephine Koisaba 5

3. CPA Bernard Ngugi 5

4. Hon. Rehema Hassan 2

5. Eng. Peter Njenga 5

Mandate
•	 The Committee deals with the 

governance matters of the company. 
The functions include: - 

•	 Develop corporate governance 
principles in support of effective 
organisational roles and 
responsibilities and make appropriate 
recommendations to the Board.

•	 Review the adherence to, and 
amendments of the Memorandum and 
Articles of Association of the Company, 
including rules and procedures.

•	 Review the procurement policies, 
systems, procedures, budget 
alignments and procurement structures 
to ensure due and timely compliance 
with the law and regulations governing 
public procurement and asset disposal 
in Kenya.

•	 Consider and oversee the 
operationalisation of the Annual 
Procurement Plan of the Company 
and the institutionalisation of the 
procurement cycle to ensure integrity 
in the procurement, processes and 
proper record keeping and contract 
management.

•	 Consider and oversee the 
operationalisation of the Assets 
Disposal Plan to ensure obsolete 
assets of the Company are disposed 
expeditiously, economically in an 

accountable and transparent manner 
in line with the provision of the 
procurement Laws.

•	 Ensure general coherence and 
consistency of the governance 
structures of the Company, including 
annual review of terms of reference 
of all Committees of the Board to 
ensure roles and responsibilities of 
committees remain appropriate and fit 
for purpose.

•	 Oversee the implementation of the 
recommendations of the Corporate 
Governance Audit of the Company.

•	 Oversee the implementation of the 
recommendations of the Legal and 
Compliance Audit of the Company.

•	 Ensure adherence to ethical leadership 
in compliance with provisions of the 
Constitution of Kenya, Leadership & 
Integrity Act, Public Officers Ethics Act, 
the Code of Conduct of the Company, 
and any other relevant laws and 
regulations.

•	 Monitor the development in the 
laws and regulations impacting on 
the governance and business of the 
Company.

•	 Periodically review the Company’s 
organisational documents, and, if 
appropriate, recommend changes to 
the Board.

•	 Monitor and review evolving 
corporate governance trends and 

best practices, and as it determines 
appropriate, consider other matters 
of corporate governance and make 
recommendations to the Board.

•	 Ensure that KenGen identifies and 
manages potential conflicts of 
interest through written policies and 
procedures and periodically review and 
report to the Board.

•	 Consider policies and processes 
designed to ensure high ethical 
standards and integrity for Board 
members and staff. 

Hon. Rehema Hassan was elected at the AGM on 28th November 2024.
Dr. Rosemarie Wanyoike retired at the AGM on 28th November 2024. 
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Finance & Investment Committee

Membership
The Finance & Investment Committee comprises of two (2) independent & non-executive Directors, 
two (2) Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Executive Director. 

Attendance

No. NAME ATTENDANCE

1. Mr. William Rahedi (Chair) 11

2. Mr. Kennedy Ondieki - Alternate Director to CS-
National Treasury

9

3. Mr. Chrispin Lupe - Alternate Director to PS-State 
Department for Energy

11

4. Eng. Frank Konuche 11

5. Eng. Peter Njenga 11

Mr. William Rahedi 
(Chairperson)

Mandate
The Committee oversees 
corporate finance and capital 
market matters, capital raising 
& planning activities of the 
company and appraises expenses 
& investments of the company. 
The functions include: -

•	 Oversee the Corporate Finance 
Matters of the Company as 
follows: 

•	 Sourcing financing for the 
Company’s capital projects and 
other projects.

•	 Pursuing new innovative 
financing approaches such 
as equity partnerships in new 
projects, asset monetization of 
existing plants, or asset backed 
securities.

•	 Monitor the balance sheet and 
cash flow position.

•	 Oversee any balance sheet 
restructuring activities of the 
Company such as rights issues. 

•	 Review Strategic Finance 
Matters.

•	 Review financial delegations and 
recommend amendments.

•	 The implementation of the 
overall investment plan for the 

Rights Issue funds, as per the 
Information Memorandum, 
Ministerial approvals and asset 
allocations for cash and cash 
equivalents with respect to fixed-
income securities, and equities.

•	 Review Management’s 
short-term investment 
recommendations, including 
permissible types of 
investments, with respect to 
uncommitted Rights Issue funds 
and advice as necessary.

•	 Review carbon-credit, valuation 
trading and utilization of funds 
derived from carbon trading.

•	 Monitor   the   Treasury   
Management   strategies   of   
the Company.

•	 Monitor Tax compliance, 
Planning Strategies of the 
Company and tax liabilities.
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Corporate Governance

No. NAME NUMBER OF SHARES PERCENTAGE 
SHAREHOLDING

1. Cabinet Secretary -The National 
Treasury 

4,615,424,088 69.99%

2. Stanbic Nominees Limited A/C 
NR13931504

495,348,189 7.51%

3. Standard Chartered Nominees Ltd 
A/C KE002339

120,000,000 1.82%

4. Standard Chartered Nominees 
Resd A/C KE11450

64,702,437 0.98%

5. Stanbic Nominees Limited 
R6631578

60,148,649 0.91%

6. Standard Chartered Nominees 
Resd A/C KE11443

35,163,194 0.53%

7. Mavji, Ramila Harji 30,000,000 0.45%

8. Njihia, Waithaka Ng'ang'a 22,176,900 0.34%

9. Standard Chartered Nominees 
Resd A/C KE11436

16,650,190 0.25%

10. Standard Chartered Kenya 
Nominees Ltd A/C 131550500013

15,250,000 0.23%

11. Others-193647 1,119,658,692 16.98%

Grand Total 6,594,522,339 100.00%

In line with continuing obligations for listed companies as prescribed by the Capital Markets Authority 
and Nairobi Securities Exchange, KenGen files monthly Investors’ Returns. 

Top 10 Shareholders as at 30 June 2025

Shareholding
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Corporate Governance

No. RANGE NUMBER OF 
RECORDS

NUMBER OF 
SHARES

PERCENTAGE 
SHAREHOLDING

1. 1 to 500 84,604 20,085,559 0.30%

2. 501 to 1000 34,562 27,554,820 0.42%

3. 1001 to 5000 49,176 109,648,030 1.66%

4. 5001 to 10000 16,304 110,062,916 1.67%

5. 10001 to 50000 7,128 145,047,588 2.20%

6. 50001 to 100000 890 63,578,177 0.96%

7. 100001 to 500000 724 147,931,444 2.24%

8. 500001 to 1000000 129 92,594,316 1.40%

9. 1000001 to 2000000000 140 5,878,019,489 89.13%

Grand Total 193,657 6,594,522,339 100.00%

Shares Distribution Statistics 

INVESTOR POOL NUMBER OF 
RECORDS

NUMBER OF 
SHARES

PERCENTAGE 
SHAREHOLDING

Local Institutions 7,736 5,004,267,982 75.885%

Local Individuals 185,008 899,895,903 13.646%

Foreign Investors 913 690,358,454 10.469%

Grand Total 193,657 6,594,522,339 100.00%

Summary Returns 
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The G2G 2034 Strategy 
KenGen, East Africa’s largest power producer, has 
been shaping the region’s energy landscape since 
1954. With the industry undergoing rapid change 
through new players, technologies, and shifting 
demands, KenGen is positioning itself to lead 
rather than follow. 

Our G2G 2034 Strategy was officially launched 
on 17th October 2024 by the Cabinet Secretary, 
Ministry of Energy and Petroleum, marking a 
significant milestone in KenGen’s transformation 
journey. The launch underscored the Government’s 
support for our strategic vision and reaffirmed 
KenGen’s pivotal role in driving Kenya’s energy 
transition.

The G2G 2034 Strategy is our bold blueprint for 
transformation, innovation, and sustainability—
future-proofing the company, safeguarding market 
leadership, and empowering all teams to drive our 
shared vision.

Our strategic roadmap is designed to accelerate 
KenGen’s transformation, bring our vision to life, and 
firmly position the Company as a leader in provision 
of renewable energy solutions, while delivering 
sustainable long-term value for our shareholders.

KenGen’s long-term growth and transformation 
agenda is anchored on four strategic growth pillars:

1)	 Increase power capacity: Targeting an 
additional 1,500 MW of renewable energy 
capacity and 500 MWh of energy storage, to 
address the country’s growing demand and 
enhance grid flexibility.

2)	 Secure sustainable financing: Access to 
concessional loans and innovative financing 
models, including SPVs, to optimize capital 
deployment and secure long-term value

3)	 Grow future revenues: Ring-fencing core 
electricity generation revenues and diversifying 
revenue streams by leveraging our areas of 
proven expertise like geothermal exploration 
and drilling services

4)	 Strengthen stakeholder engagement: Deepen 
collaboration with government, investors, 
communities, and development partners.

KenGen’s strategic ambition is underpinned by five 
critical enablers that provide the foundation for 
successful execution and align with our mission to 
deliver competitively priced electricity to the region 
by leveraging our highly skilled talent, engaging 
closely with stakeholders, employing efficient 
processes, and utilizing modern technology. 

These enablers ensure that our growth agenda 
is sustainable, resilient, and impactful for our 
stakeholders and the wider energy ecosystem:

5)	 Talent development: Empowering our people 
and organization through upskilling, reskilling 
and a strong performance-driven culture

6)	 Competitively priced electricity: Optimising our 
operational costs and investments to provide 
affordable power to the citizenry.

7)	 Advance digital transformation: Leveraging 
digital tools and technologies to enhance 
efficiency and agility across our operations. 

8)	 Optimize internal processes: Enhancing 
organizational productivity by streamlining 
workflows, increasing efficiency and embedding 
a culture of continuous improvement. 

9)	 Drive strategy delivery: Advancing 
transformative initiatives to accelerate KenGen’s 
evolution into a future-ready energy leader. 

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Targeting an additional 
1,500 MW of renewable 
energy capacity and 
500 MWh of energy 
storage.1,500MW

The 63.3 MW Olkaria 
I rehabilitation project 
is currently under 
construction and 
has reached 74% 
completion.63.3MW
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Realising Our Strategy 
•	 The 63.3 MW Olkaria I rehabilitation project 

is currently under construction and has 
reached 74% completion, a testament of our 
commitment in increasing installed power 
capacity to meet growing energy demand, while 
strengthening Kenya’s energy security.

•	 A total of 253 MW of new renewable energy 
capacity (geothermal, hydro and solar) have 
advanced to the implementation phase. This 
milestone reflects our strong project pipeline 
and commitment to expanding Kenya’s clean 
energy portfolio.

•	 A total of USD 650 million has been secured 
to finance these projects, underscoring our 
strong capital mobilization capacity and 
investor confidence in KenGen’s strategic 
direction. This achievement has been made 
possible through the Government’s support 
and the active participation of Development 
Finance Institutions (DFIs) and other lending 
partners. The funding will play a pivotal role 
in accelerating the implementation of our 
renewable energy projects, ensuring timely 
delivery, and reinforcing our commitment 
to sustainable growth and long-term value 
creation.

•	 Through our diversification efforts, we 
conducted geothermal exploration studies in 
Eswatini adding on the diversification revenue. 
We are progressing other diversification efforts 
in Ngozi, Tanzania, among others.

•	 Our Green Energy Park in Olkaria received a 
significant boost with its gazettement as a 
Special Economic Zone (SEZ). This recognition 
marks a major milestone in our journey to 
transform Olkaria into a hub for sustainable 
industrial development. Leveraging Olkaria’s 
abundant geothermal resources, the Green 
Energy Park is poised to provide competitively 
priced, clean, and reliable energy to industries, 
fostering green manufacturing, innovation, and 
job creation. 

•	 Strategy dissemination was carried out 
company-wide to strengthen alignment, 
deepen staff engagement, and build a shared 
understanding of our long-term transformation 
agenda. By embedding the strategy into 
daily operations, we are fostering a culture 

of ownership, accountability, and innovation, 
ensuring every employee contributes to our 
vision and mission.

•	 Strategic risks that could impact the delivery 
of the G2G 2034 Strategy are under active 
monitoring, with concerted efforts directed 
towards implementing mitigation measures 
and aligning risk responses to our strategic 
initiatives.

•	 We continue to strengthen regulatory and 
stakeholder engagement by emphasizing 
on proactive dialogue, transparency, and 
collaboration with a broad spectrum of 
stakeholders, including government institutions, 
regulators, development partners, investors, 
and local communities. By fostering trust and 
cultivating mutually beneficial relationships, 
we are ensuring that our strategic initiatives 
are supported by a strong policy and regulatory 
environment, while also addressing the 

expectations of the stakeholders. 

Driving Sustainable Power Generation

Our worldclass pool of in-house engineering 
prowess and technical expertise continues to 
transform the nation’s energy landscape through 
efficient running of the Company’s electricity 
generation assets. With 96% of our generation 
coming from renewable sources, geothermal, 
hydro, wind, and thermal, we remain committed 
to powering sustainable growth, reducing carbon 
emissions, and ensuring reliable electricity for the 
country’s socio-economic development.

Fleet Maintenance
 
KenGen’s business is aimed at operational 
excellence through systematic pursuit of 
continuous improvement across all aspects 
of a power plant’s operations, with the goal 
of maximizing efficiency, reliability, safety, 
sustainability, and profitability. 

Industrial control systems not limited to SCADA, 
IoT, DCS are deployed across our generation fleet to 
gather data on machine status to aid in predictive 
maintenance. To ensure availability and reliability 
of KenGen power plants, the Company scales up 
with the deployment of various global best plant 
maintenance strategies which include:

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Our Strategic Imperatives
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•	 Preventive Maintenance
•	 Condition Based Maintenance (CBM)
•	 Reliability Centered Maintenance (RCM) while leveraging on state-of-the-art technology. 

This ensures that the entire fleet is in good condition to provide the nation with reliable and affordable 
electric power. 

To optimize the turnaround times of maintenance works, we strive to ensure availability of required 
resources including critical and strategic spare parts, tools and maintenance equipment. 

KenGen is conscious of O&M costs and invests in human capital development by continuous technical 
trainings and knowledge transfer through employee active involvement in key refurbishment projects. 
Water reservoirs form a critical component of our hydro generation and hence the company is committed 
to efficient and responsible water resource conservation and utilization. Responsible operations involve 
prudent water management by monitoring weather patterns and energy demand balancing to ensure the 

nation benefits longer from the generation of cheaper hydro power even during dry seasons.

Root Cause Analysis Strategy 

The primary objective of Root Cause Analysis, (RCA) is to ensure long-term reliability, availability, and safety 
of plant operations. It enables continuous improvement by preventing failures, optimizing maintenance 
strategies, and supporting compliance with regulatory and industry standards.

During the year we rolled out a robust training initiative on Root Cause Analysis (RCA) for our power plant 
operators. 16 employees drawn from all regions were trained in two cohorts on Root Cause Analysis (RCA) 
by Australia Africa Energy & Minerals Institute.

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

KenGen staff members receive certificates of 
completion for the Root Cause Analysis (RCA) 
training from General Manager, Operations, Eng. 
Julius Odumbe, recognizing their achievement 
and commitment to operational excellence and 
continuous improvement.

Our Strategic Imperatives
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94MW 
HYDRO

Kamburu Hydro Dam
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Occupational Health and Safety 
KenGen has continued to demonstrate good 
governance and holds itself to account through the 
implementation of quality management system 
and meeting the requirements of ISO9001:2015 
Quality Management System (QMS) requirements 
throughout the year. 

The Company conducted two internal Audits 
and external surveillance Audits to measure the 
effectiveness of our Quality Management System 
(QMS).

Our commitment to sustainable development was 
demonstrated in our maintenance of international 
environmental standards based on ISO14001:2015 
Environmental Management System (EMS) 
requirements. During the year we reviewed our 
process to prevent environmental pollution, enhance 
efficiency and material usage as well as promote 
conservation efforts.

To maintain our Integrated Management Systems 
(IMS) the Company conducted two internal 
Audits and external surveillance Audit to test the 
robustness of KenGen IMS.

In ensuring continuity of operations, we 
implemented several emergency preparedness and 
response activities including training of emergency 
responders, Fire Marshalls, First Aiders and 
Emergency Response Teams (ERT) who operate fire 
engines in our regions. To improve our emergency 
response time we carried out testing, simulations 
and drills to evaluate our readiness.

Enhance Occupational health and safety of 
employees and stakeholders

Fire protection programs were implemented through 
the delivery of fire engines to the Geothermal 
region and installation of fire hydrant systems in 
Geothermal and Eastern regions.

Occupational Health and Safety- Emergency 
Training

Safety of our employee is one of our corporate 
values. During the year we conducted benchmarking 
and training of our employee on operating fire 
engines, Basic Safety Training and Advance Rescue 
Training for 20 Ngong Wind Farm employees by 
Global Wind Organization as well as Work at height 
and basic rescue training for 20 Geothermal region 
staff by Viscar Industrial Capacity Limited.

KenGen safety champions participated in DOSH 
First aid, fire and workplace competitions which 
culminated in celebration of World Safety Day at 
Nanyuki where the company workstations earned 
multiple recognitions.

In line with our Disaster Risk Management and 
Business Continuity Program (DRM – BCP), 
KenGen has made significant efforts to improve fire 
protection systems and equipment, to ensure that 
our people and assets are adequately protected in 
the event of fire. During the year, company acquired 
two fully equipped fire engines for Eastern and 
Geothermal regions. 

KenGen staff participate in a firefighting 
training session, enhancing their safety 
preparedness, emergency response 
skills, and capacity to manage fire-related 
incidents effectively

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Our Strategic Imperatives



KenGen
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2025

78

NATIONAL AWARDS BY DOSHS

Olkaria IV Geothermal Power Plant

KenGen participated in the National OSH Awards competitions held by 
the Directorate of Occupational Safety and Health Services in April 2025 
and secured several top awards, including:

I.	 Overall Winner in the Fire Safety Challenge – Thermal
II.	 Best Fire Marshall – Geothermal
III.	 2nd Runners Up in the First Aid Challenge – Central Office
IV.	 2nd Runners Up in Workplace Safety – Energy Sector – 
	 Kamburu Power Plant
V.	 1st Runners Up in Workplace Safety – Energy Sector – Olkaria 1 AU

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Our Strategic Imperatives
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Strategic Partnerships

His Excellency Dr. William Samoei Ruto, C.G.H., President of the Republic of Kenya and Commander-in-Chief of the Defence Forces, 
together with KenGen Managing Director and CEO, Eng. Peter Njenga, during the flag-off ceremony of the World Rally Championship.

KenGen Managing Director and CEO Eng. Peter Njenga with the German Vice Chancellor during 
his visit of Olkaria Geothermal Power Plants

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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KenGen staff enjoy the World Rally Championship 
action at the KenGen Geothermal Stage, celebrating 
innovation, energy, and sporting excellence

Strategic Partnerships

World Rally Championship (WRC)

KenGen made history by partnering with the World Rally Championship (WRC) Safari Rally Kenya, 
introducing the KenGen Geothermal Stage at Hell’s Gate National Park to showcase the integration 
of renewable energy into motorsport. The collaboration powered the rally’s infrastructure with clean 
geothermal energy, elevated KenGen’s visibility to over 100 million global viewers, and positioned the 
company as a leader in aligning sports with sustainability.

One of the rally cars speeds past the KenGen Olkaria field 
during the World Rally Championship event held at Hell’s 
Gate National Park

International Partnerships
KenGen has established itself as a global hub for sustainable energy innovation, hosting a distinguished array 
of international guests that underscore its influence in the global energy sector. These engagements have 
reinforced Olkaria’s reputation as a beacon of sustainable development, positioning it as a dynamic hub for 
transformative energy solutions with a lasting global impact. Through these collaborations, KenGen continues 
to influence the global energy landscape, driving progress in sustainable development while cultivating 
meaningful international partnerships.

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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Germany’s Vice Chancellor, accompanied by a German 
government delegation and the former Minister for ICT-Kenya

KenGen Managing Director and CEO Eng. Peter Njenga 
(right) hosts Edward Claessen, Head of the European 
Investment Bank (EIB) Regional Hub—East Africa, during 
a meeting at KenGen Headquarters, Stima Plaza, Nairobi

A delegation of Japanese investors touring KenGen’s 
Olkaria geothermal fields in Kenya to learn about ongoing 
clean energy projects and experience the country’s 
expanding geothermal potential

The democratic Republic of Algeria Government Delegation in 
Olkaria to discuss collaboration and partnership in geothermal 
development

One of the rally cars proudly displays KenGen branding, 
showcasing the company’s support and partnership in 
motorsport and community engagement

WRC SAFARI RALLY CIRCUIT

KenGen partnered with other stakeholders to 
sponsor the World Rally Championship (WRC) Safari 
Rally, held in March 2025, at the Olkaria geothermal 
area. This was more than a motorsport spectacle, a 
celebration of sustainability, innovation, and natural 
beauty. Against the dramatic backdrop of Hell’s 
Gate National Park, competitors navigated rugged 
terrain, steam vents, and hot springs intertwined 
with the Olkaria Geothermal field, showcasing the 
unique harmony between high-octane adventure 
and clean energy.

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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KenGen ascribes to Government of Kenya Performance Contracts (GoK PCs) framework to 
ensure delivery of core business, maximize stakeholder value and enforce professional service 
delivery to Kenyans, in line with the national Bottom-up Economic Transformation Agenda 
(BETA) aspirations, focusing on financial excellence and operational efficiency.

The Company GoK PC score for the financial year 2023/24 was 3.0497 (‘Good’), as evaluated 
by Public Service Performance Monitoring Unit, based on an inverted scale of 1 – 5 with 1 being 
excellent and 5 being poor. For the period ended 30th June 2025, the Company conducted a 
self-evaluation and scored   2.9401 (Very Good). This improved performance underscores our 
commitment to powering the Nation through efficient maintenance of electricity generating 
power plants, advancement of feasibility studies for potential capacity expansion, sustained 
profitability, and continued leadership in driving productivity within Public Service.

Government Performance Contract

GOK PERFORMANCE 

KenGen 2024/25 GoK Performance Contract highlights:

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA HIGHLIGHT

Financial Stewardship and 
Fiscal Discipline

•	 132.0% absorption (Kshs. 47.52 Billions) of internally mobilized funds.
•	 Externally generated funds of Kshs. 5.89 Billions (53.4%) absorbed.
•	 Appropriations-in-aid of Kshs. 76.56 Millions from disposal of plant 

station scrap.
•	 The company met its financial obligations, by settling all pending bills.

Service Delivery •   Re-engineered and digitalized business processes and onboarded them 
on the e-citizen portal.

•   Initiatives for Citizens’ Service Delivery Charter implemented as 
    committed.
•   No major public complaint received.

Core Mandate •	 All generation modes were above target due to better hydrology and 
dispatch.

•	 Olkaria I Rehabilitation, 7-Forks Solar, Gogo Upgrade and Wellhead 
Leasing projects progressed well; Olkaria 280MW Uprating and Olkaria II 
140MW projects discontinued.

•	 Surpassed Pre-tax profit and Return on Investment targets.
•	 Progressed Geothermal Training Centre and Raising of Masinga dam 

projects.

Implementation of 
Presidential Directives

•	 Government services on-boarded on eCitizen platform.
•	 886,901 seedlings planted, exceeding the National Tree Growing 

Restoration Campaign target of 830,000

Affirmative Action in 
Procurement

•	 AGPO awards of Kshs. 2.23 Billions, 87% of a Kshs. 2.57 Billions target; 
Persons with Disability awarded Kshs. 0.27 Billions.

•	 Local content tenders of Kshs. 10.01 Billions, 69% of the Kshs. 14.53 
Billions target.

Cross-Cutting Initiatives •	 Engaged 1,076 attaches (4 as PWD) 
•   Asset management and Competence Development initiatives 

implemented.
•	 100% score received for implementation of National Values indicator

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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Government Performance Contract

Our commitment to Government Performance Contracting reinforces public trust 
in the effectiveness of state Corporations while delivering value to Kenyans and 
advancing the Nations journey towards achieving its development aspirations. 

Contribution to Energy Security - Our Projects & Growth Pipeline

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

No. Project Name Capacity (MW) COD

1. Olkaria I Rehabilitation 63 2026

2. Olkaria IAU & IV Turbine Uprating/ Topping Plant 40 2029

3. Seven Forks Solar 42.5 2027

4. Gogo Redevelopment 8.6 2028

5. Olkaria VII 80.3 2028

6. Olkaria VI 140 2028

7. Marsabit wind 100MW up to 1000MW 100/200 2029

8. Wellhead Leasing 58.42MW 58.42 2027

9. Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) 100MW/
200MWh

2027

1,500MW

Driving Kenya’s Sustainable Energy Future 
Kenya is endowed with abundant and diverse energy 
resources, including 16 geothermal fields, hydropower, 
biomass, wind corridors, and vast solar potential. At 
KenGen, we are committed to advancing the nation’s 
sustainable development by responsibly harnessing 
these resources to power economic growth, improve 
quality of life, and promote social equity. We recognise 
that the responsible management of natural resources 
is essential for long-term prosperity. As a leader in 
Kenya’s energy sector, our goal is to meet the country’s 
growing energy demand while preserving its natural 
heritage for future generations. Geothermal Energy is 
central to the delivery of KenGen’s G2G 2034 Strategy 
with a contribution of an additional 840MW out of the 
targeted 1,500MW.

“ As a leader in Kenya’s energy 
sector, our goal is to meet the 
country’s growing energy demand 
while preserving its natural 
heritage for future generations. 
Geothermal Energy is central 
to the delivery of KenGen’s G2G 
2034 Strategy”

During the year, our geoscientific 
teams conducted studies in Eburru 
to guide the siting of wells, aiming to 
achieve 25 MW of geothermal power 
from Eburru as part of our strategy.

Generating from the Earth
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Through sustained investment in Geothermal energy, KenGen has significantly expanded the 
country’s baseload electricity generation capacity while stabilizing the grid from fluctuations 
caused by intermittent wind and solar sources. This contributes to reduction in greenhouse gas 
emissions by displacing electricity generation from fossil fuels. KenGen’s geothermal plants are 
located in Olkaria, within the Naivasha sub-county, and Eburru, in Gilgil sub-county. 

Generating from the Earth (cont’d)

Geothermal Power: Energising Kenya’s Growth and a Greener Future

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Generating from the Earth



85KenGen
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2025

KenGen has long been at the forefront of harnessing the Earth’s natural heat to power Kenya’s sustainable 
development. Our geothermal journey began in 1952 with exploration at Olkaria, leading to the successful 
drilling of our first wells in 1956. Since then, we have drilled over 340 wells in Olkaria and Eburru, steadily 
building Kenya’s position as Africa’s leading geothermal power producer.

Through continuous innovation and investment in technology, we have enhanced well productivity from an 
average of 2 MW per well in the 1970s to 5 MW today.

Kenya’s Geothermal Global Position 
KenGen’s unwavering commitment to geothermal 
development has positioned Kenya as a global 
leader in renewable energy. Our contribution of 754 
MW has been central to the nation’s total installed 
geothermal capacity of 953 MW, placing Kenya 
among top 10 global geothermal power generators. 
This milestone underscores the impact of our 
strategic investments and technological expertise 
on both national energy security and the global 
clean energy landscape. 

SUSTAINABLE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT: 
MAXIMIZING THE POWER OF NATURE

At KenGen, we believe in managing our geothermal 
resources responsibly to ensure they remain 
productive for generations to come. By reinjecting 
fluids back into the earth, we help sustain the 
geothermal reservoirs, preserve pressure and 
heat, and minimise environmental impact. These 
efforts reflect our commitment to balancing energy 
production with long-term sustainability, ensuring 
that the clean energy we harness today continues to 
power Kenya’s future.

Reinjection Strategy
We continuously conduct tracer tests to monitor the 
movement of fluids within the Olkaria reservoirs, 
which helps us understand the connectivity between 
wells and sustain long-term production. Alongside 
this, we drill reinjection wells to replenish the 
reservoirs and maintain stable pressure, ensuring 
geothermal energy remains a reliable resource for 
the future.
During the year, the Company conducted tracer tests 
in the Olkaria Domes, Northeast, and East segments 
of the Olkaria geothermal field. To sustain the steam 
production, we successfully drilled three geothermal 
reinjection wells.

Sustainable Reservoir Management
Our approach to sustainable resource management 
is grounded in scientific knowledge. We utilise 
advanced reservoir modelling techniques 
to simulate and predict the behaviour of the 
geothermal reservoir over time. By developing 
detailed digital models, we can analyse various 
scenarios and assess the impact of different 
strategies, enabling us to make informed decisions 
regarding resource exploitation, reinjection and 
reservoir management that prioritise long-term 
sustainability.

Our geothermal journey

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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Sustainable Reservoir Management (cont’d) 
During the year we assessed our Olkaria resource 
and its response to the current level of extraction 
resulting from the plants developed since 2014. 
The consultant will work with Company’s internal 
expertise. The findings of this work will inform 
the programs that should be implemented 
to ensure continued and sustainable power 
generation for existing and planned power plants.
  
Integrated Resource Management Systems (IRMS)
By integrating advanced technology with 
geothermal expertise, we move beyond basic 
data collection to make informed geothermal 
decisions. At Olkaria, our Integrated Resource 
Management System (IRMS) integrates diverse 
geoscientific data into a GIS-based platform, 
offering a comprehensive overview of the 
geothermal resource. This system empowers 
our scientists and experts to explore data layers, 
identify patterns, and gain insights that inform our 
management strategies. 

Steam Availability

Through optimising steam availability, minimising 
downtime, and deploying advanced technologies, 
we maximise the energy harnessed from our 
geothermal resources, strengthening both the 
sustainability and reliability of our operations.

Our approach includes routine inspections, timely 
repairs, and comprehensive upgrades that ensure 
each steam field component functions optimally 
while extending the lifespan of our assets.  To 
further enhance steam supply, we integrate 
make-up wells into existing systems. During the 
year, our internal teams successfully connected 
two Wells to provide makeup steam for electricity 
generation. Additionally, they drilled four wells in 
Olkaria fields to provide supplementary steam for 
upcoming power development projects.

Business Diversification

KenGen’s Green Energy Park is not only key to 
the Company’s diversification strategy, but also 
critical in supporting the country`s industrialization 

agenda by providing green reliable energy directly 
to industries at affordable tariffs. 

During the year, the Energy Park was gazetted as 
a Special Economic Zone (SEZ), paving the way 
for enhanced investment and regulatory support. 
In continuing to spur industrialization in the 
region, one additional investor was onboard to 
set up operations in the park, while pursuing other 
investors.

Infrastructure development has commenced, 
including the installation of power systems, 
construction of a one-stop-shop facility, water 
reticulation, and a vital link-road connecting the 
park to the Suswa Inland Container Depot (ICD) 
Station.

Geothermal Drilling and Consultancy
 

KenGen continues to play a pivotal role in 
advancing geothermal development across Africa 
by leveraging its technical expertise in drilling and 
geoscientific studies. The company successfully 
conducted geoscientific studies consultancy 
in Eswatini and is currently executing a drilling 
contract in Ngozi, Tanzania.

The Company is pursuing further opportunities in 
the region and beyond, with potential contracts 
under consideration in Eswatini, Tanzania, Djibouti, 
Zambia, and Bhutan. These initiatives underscore 
KenGen’s commitment to regional energy 
collaboration and its leadership in sustainable 
geothermal solutions.

KenGen is pursuing other revenue diversification 
through strategic investments in emerging energy 
technologies and complementary sectors. Key 
initiatives include exploring opportunities in 
electric mobility and solar panel manufacturing, 
aimed at expanding the company’s footprint in 
sustainable energy solutions. Additionally, KenGen 
is advancing its hospitality portfolio with plans to 
expand the geothermal spa, enhancing its value 
proposition and leveraging its growing popularity.

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Generating from the Earth
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Commercial Drilling Services and 
Geoscientific Work

KenGen has established itself as a leading force 
in geothermal development across Africa. Given 
the continent’s vast geothermal potential, this 
leadership presents opportunities for KenGen 
and has opened up possibilities for other African 
nations to harness the clean, sustainable 
geothermal energy resource to transform and 
change the lives of their citizenry.

We have successfully delivered commercial drilling 
services for our fellow African nations in Ethiopia 
and Djibouti, where our teams drilled wells at the 
Aluto project in Ethiopia and the Gala Le Koma 
field in Djibouti. These milestones showcase our 
unmatched technical expertise and efficiency in 
executing large-scale geothermal projects across 
the continent. Beyond drilling, we’ve extended our 
footprint with geoscientific services in Malawi, 
Rwanda, Sudan, and Comoros—cementing 
KenGen’s position as Africa’s trusted partner in 
sustainable renewable energy solutions.

We are proud to have recently Leverage our 
expertise with our neighbouring East African 
nation Tanzania, by securing a contract and 
a collaboration agreement with Tanzania 
Geothermal Development Company to initially drill 
three slim exploratory wells at Ngozi, Mbeya.
Our inhouse geothermal expert team mobilised 
to Tanzania in July 2025 and has competently 
completed spudding of the first well and is now 
progressing to the next stage of deep drilling of 
the well to the targeted depth of 2,000 meters.
This year, beyond Tanzania, we have expanded our 
footprint of geoscientific exploration in Eswatini 
and Zambia. Our inhouse geoscientists completed 
exploration studies in Eswatini between August 
and December 2024, while negotiations for the 
Zambian project are ongoing.

Our diversification strategy extends beyond 
international partnerships to fostering local 
collaborations within Kenya. We actively seek 
opportunities to collaborate with geothermal 
concession holders, supporting the local 
ecosystem, knowledge transfer, and the 
development of sustainable energy solutions. 
These efforts reinforce KenGen’s goals 
of strengthening regional integration and 
advancing Kenya’s transition to a sustainable 
energy future.

2,000M
completed spudding first well at Mbeya 
Tanzania, now progressing to deep drilling 
to the targeted depth of 2,000 meters.

Innovation, Research & Development

Redefining Energy Leadership Through 
Continuous Renewal

As Kenya’s foremost power producer 
and a champion of renewable energy, 
KenGen plays a pivotal role in the country’s 
renewable energy development agenda. 
With 90% of its installed capacity being 
from renewable sources, we are not 
only driving national electrification but 
also shaping the future of energy in the 
region. To remain resilient and relevant 
in an increasingly dynamic energy 
landscape, the Company has anchored 
its transformation on operational 
excellence and continuous re-invention. 
This is anchored on Business Process 
Improvement; Innovation; Research 
& Development; and Knowledge 
Management. These form an integrated 
renewal framework that supports 
KenGen’s vision of becoming a diversified 
and modern energy solutions provider.

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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Revenue Diversification

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Our renewal initiatives are guided 
by KenGen’s Good to Great 
2034 Strategy, which identifies 
innovation as a key driver of 
long-term success. Corporate 
programs such as the annual 
G2G Innovation Seminar, now in 
its 12th edition, and Communities 
of Practice & Innovation (COPI) 
have institutionalized a culture of 
ideation and peer-driven problem-
solving. These initiatives have 
generated over 944 innovative 
ideas, with 250 implemented 
internally, directly contributing to 
cost optimization, efficiency, and 
new revenue opportunities.

Systematically review and optimize 
workflows to promote operational 

excellence by leveraging lean 
methodologies, automation and data-driven 

performance management across the 
generation portfolio

Knowledge hub within Africa’s energy 
sector by exploring emerging renewable 

technologies and improving plant efficiency 
through strong partnerships with academia, 

industry and global organisations

Capture,organise and 
share tacit institutional 
knowledge to foster a 
learning organisation 
that churns insights 

into impactful solutions 
for continuity and 
sustainablility of 
renewal efforts

Pioneer renewable 
technologies to link 

operations and future 
opportunities aligned with 

global energy trends to 
reimagine KenGen’s role 
as a leader in integrated 

energy solutions

BUSINESS PROCESS 
IMPROVEMENT

Idea Distribution - 2025 (Total: 944)

Others
240 (25.4%)

Concepts
44 (4.7%)

Best Practice
50 (5.3%)

Implemented
250 (26.5%)

Project 
Preparation
153 (16.2%)

Detailed 
Proposal
207 (21.9%)



(IP and Innovation / R&D Initiatives 

-	 Intellectual Property: 3 patents, 3 utility models, 103 copyrights, and 31 
trademarks registered, reflects commitment to robust IP management to 
safeguard innovations

-	 Research & Development Centre, Upper Tana: 93% construction, to be ready in 
December 2025

-	 Partnerships and collaborations: Registering R&D Centre as a WIPO-accredited 
Technology and Innovation Support Centre (TISC)

-	 Solar Carport, Solar-Powered Street Lighting, and Solarisation of Research 
Centre: generate 468,660 kWh annually, off a 256.8 kW grid-tied solar 
photovoltaic (PV) system

-	 Steam-driven Pumps: improve lubrication system from DC power (susceptible to 
outages and failures) to using steam, lowering operational risks and improving 
plant availability

-	 Robotic Sediment Removal in Geothermal Cooling Tower Basins: improve 
cooling systems’ efficiency vide non-intrusive cleaning technology for sludge 
removal as plants operate

Retrofitted Cooling Water System:  pilot modification project at Olkaria I AU 5 to 
achieve >10% boost in cooling efficiency, directly improving turbine performance 
and plant reliability. 

KenGen Head Office staff with the Managing Director and CEO during the launch of  phase V of the tree planting campaign at the 
Head Office, Nairobi, in December 2024

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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Revenue Diversification

By utilizing data-driven decision-making and fostering a culture of 
continuous improvement, various processes have been reviewed 
to boost business performance, cut costs, and provide sustainable 
value to stakeholders. These include Geothermal Quality and 
Safety, Insurance, Hydros Machine Outage Resolution, Procurement 
Secretariat Checklist, Environmental & Social Impact Assessment 
(ESIA), Spare Parts Management Optimization and Structured Problem 
Solving through Root Cause Analysis.

Through knowledge harvesting, policy development, and records 
management, KenGen is cementing its role as a learning organization. 
Knowledge updates include KenGen History Book, Staff Documentaries, 
Communities of Practice (COP2) experts’ directory, KenGen Museum 
project: (in conjunction with National Museums of Kenya) and 
automation of Information & Records Management.

Through this dynamic synergy of the continuous renewal plan, KenGen 
is not only reinforcing its core capabilities to drive sustainable growth, 
but also positioning itself as a future-ready organization, at the 
forefront of Africa’s renewable energy transformation.
Leveraging Digital Transformation

At KenGen, our ICT infrastructure forms the backbone of our 
operations, enabling us to deliver on our purpose and strategic 
ambitions. By enhancing operational efficiency, driving data-driven 
decision-making, fostering innovation, and strengthening cybersecurity, 
ICT plays a central role in powering our business. We remain deliberate 
in advancing digital transformation initiatives, ensuring that our 
systems and processes are agile, resilient, and responsive to evolving 
market dynamics.

Our leadership in digital innovation was recently recognized at 
the Digital Transformation Public Sector (DTPS) Forum & Awards 
in February 2025, where KenGen received the prestigious “Best 

“ We remain 
deliberate in 
advancing digital 
transformation 
initiatives, 
ensuring that 
our systems and 
processes are 
agile, resilient, 
and responsive to 
evolving market 
dynamics.”

Through 
knowledge 
harvesting, policy 
development, 
and records 
management, 
KenGen is 
cementing its 
role as a learning 
organization.

KenGen Research and Development (R&D) Building at Upper Tana, supporting innovation and sustainable energy solutions

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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Digital Transformation

Public Sector Digital Innovation in Energy & ICT” award. This accolade highlighted our strategic 
implementation of Internet of Things (IoT) technologies at the Olkaria Geothermal Power Stations, 
significantly enhancing operational resilience, optimizing energy management, and ensuring 
uninterrupted power generation nationwide. This transformation is integral to the successful 
implementation of our G2G 2034 Strategy, positioning KenGen to meet future energy demands and 
deliver long-term value to our customers, communities, and shareholders.

KenGen technical staff working on a well at Olkaria Geothermal field

Cybersecurity and Data Protection

In response to the growing landscape of 
sophisticated cybersecurity threats, KenGen has 
prioritized building organizational resilience through 
strengthened governance, advanced technology 
deployment, and continuous capacity building. 
During the year, we enhanced threat detection 
and response capabilities with a Vulnerability 
Management Solution and delivered specialized 
training to technical staff and employees awareness 
programs.

Digital Infrastructure
To improve our system resilience during power 
disruptions, we rolled out robust backup solutions 
that included solar power systems and 1kV 
battery storage for our servers. The continuous 

maintenance and operational support for critical 
digital platforms have contributed to sustaining high 
operational performance and system uptime.

Sustainable Digital Practices
KenGen continues to focus its operations and 
innovations on reducing environmental impact 
through energy-efficient systems, e-waste 
management, and integrating green power 
solutions, reinforcing our commitment to 
sustainability alongside technological advancement.
KenGen undertook an enhancement project focused 
on automating and streamlining key business 
workflows to reduce manual paperwork and 
improve operational efficiency. This enhancement 
aligns with broader organizational goals to improve 
service delivery and operational excellence through 
the adoption of efficient, eco-friendly digital 

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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Enterprise Risk Management & Business Resilience 

Digital Transformation
solutions. As part of KenGen’s G2G 2034 strategy for sustainable digital practices, Digital Transformation 
Liaison Officers (DTLOs) were onboarded as dedicated digital change champions across the Company. 

Digital Upskilling
In an ambitious effort to ensure infrastructure stability, strengthen cyber resilience, and accelerate 
automation and innovation, over the past year, KenGen’s teams have undergone a variety of specialized 
training programs to develop both technical and soft skills. These include Designing Cisco Enterprise 
Wireless Networks, Cyber Disaster Response, Internet of Things (IoT), as well as on Data Protection and 
Privacy focused on Kenya’s regulatory landscape. 

At KenGen, risk management is integral to our business operations and is embedded across both corporate 
and operational practices. We have established a robust Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) policy and 
framework that includes clear policy commitments designed to foster a culture of risk awareness throughout 
the organization, ensuring compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and international best practices.

Aligned with international best practices, our risk management policy offers a consistent and structured 
approach to identifying, managing and reporting risks arising from our operations. The framework is 
integrated throughout the organization, enabling regular reporting to the Board for informed decision making, 
enhances oversight and reinforces our commitment to sustainable and responsible business practices.

Risk Oversight and Governance
The Board provides oversight on the management of principal risks and internal control systems to ensure 
effective risk governance. 

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Responsible for 
oversight of risk 

management and 
review internal control 
and risk management

Review the systems 
that have been 

established and 
regularly review its 

efficiencies

Ensure systems of 
control are in-place for 
identity & manage risk

Ensure 
implementation of the 

business strategies 
approved by the 

Board of Directors & 
developing policies 

& procedures for 
effective management 

of risk

Board of Directors Board Audit & Risk 
Compliance

Managing Director 
and CEO

Executive Committee 
(ExCo)
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Enterprise Risk Management & Business Resilience
Our Risk Management Process

Risk Identification: KenGen identifies risks across its operations through process owners and risk champions 
using workshops, expert input and document reviews. This ensures continuous and comprehensive risk 
detection.

Risk Assessment: The identified risks are assessed based on their likelihood and impact across several 
criteria, such as health and safety, financial, and non-financial factors including reputation. This consistent 
evaluation framework enables effective comparison and prioritization of risks across the organization.

Risk Treatment: KenGen formulates risk treatment strategies based on assessment outcomes, existing 
controls, strategic priorities and compliance obligations. Treatment options – avoidance, mitigation, transfer 
(e.g., insurance) or acceptance – are tailored to each risk severity and endorsed at the appropriate level to 
ensure accountability and alignment with the company’s risk appetite.

Risk Monitoring & Reporting: KenGen regularly monitors the effectiveness of risk treatments and updates 
risk profiles to reflect changes in exposure, control performance and regulatory requirements. Key risks, 
assessments and mitigation measures are regularly reported to relevant stakeholders to support informed 
decision making, ensure transparency and reinforce a strong risk-aware culture.

Our Strategic Focus & Performance

Our Risk Profile

KenGen operates in a dynamic 
environment where both 
internal and external factors 
continuously shape our risk 
landscape. Our operations 
expose us to emerging risks, 
which we proactively manage 
to safeguard our assets and 
ensure sustainable growth. 
These risks are regularly 
identified, assessed, and 
communicated to the Board 
through structured processes, 
including Enterprise Risk 
Management (ERM) reports, 
strategic reviews, technology 
updates, and formal Board 
briefings. This proactive 
approach ensures that the Board 
is fully informed and able to 
guide risk mitigation strategies. 
Below are the key risks we face 
and the measures we have 
implemented to mitigate them.

IDENTIFY

TREAT

ASSESS

MONITOR & 
REPORT

RISK 
MANAGEMENT

PROCESS

1

3

2

4
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Enterprise Risk Management & Business Resilience

No. Risk Description Mitigation Measures

1. Operational Risk: Aging infrastructure 
and resource dependency may disrupt 
generation, affecting revenue and 
strategic targets.

•    Accelerated maintenance and restoration  
     efforts
•    Conducting of resource optimization studies
•    Restoration of catchment areas
•    Expedition of procurement and repairs

2. Project Execution Risk: Delays in land 
acquisition, approvals, and concessions 
threaten timely delivery of strategic 
projects.

•    Engagements with MoEP, GDC for access to 
renewable energy resources

•    Enhanced community engagement
•    Fast-tracking of statutory approvals

3. Financial Risk: Funding constraints and 
overreliance on KPLC limit investment in 
diversification and innovation.

•    Diversification of financing sources targeting 
DFIs, PPPs, and other innovative financing 
mechanisms

•    Activation of new revenue streams

4. Legal & Regulatory Risk: Delays in 
licensing, contracts, and policy changes 
impact project execution and investment 
decisions.

•    Fast-tracking of legal processes
•    Advocating for policy reforms
•    Strengthening engagement with regulators

5. Human Capital Risk: Skills gaps and weak 
succession planning threaten execution 
of the transformation strategy.

•    Roll out of succession planning
•    Upskill and reskill workforce
•    Align HR to strategic needs

6. Strategic Alignment Risk: Internal 
resistance, competition, and stakeholder 
misalignment may affect agility and 
strategic delivery.

•    Promotion of innovation and alignment
•    Strengthening change management
•    Deepening stakeholder engagement

7. Technology & Cyber Risk: Cyber threats 
and slow tech adoption may hinder 
operational efficiency and digital 
transformation.

•    Strengthening cybersecurity
•    Improvement of data governance
•    Building and enhancing digital capabilities
•    Embedding ICT into the strategy

Our Strategic Focus & Performance
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225MW 
HYDRO
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Gitaru Hydro Dam
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

24. (a) 	 Cash and bank balances (continued)

	 For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the cash and cash equivalents are presented as;

2025 2024

Shs’000 Shs’000

Cash at bank* 30,124,186 25,618,247

*Included in the cash at bank balances is local currency amount of Shs 26,588,367,000 (2024: Shs 
21,831,636,000) and foreign currency amount of Shs 3,535,819,000 (2024: Shs 3,786,611,000). 

24.  	(b)	 Restricted cash balances

i) 	 Restricted cash balances

	 The restricted cash balances relate to funds deposited with institutions to enable those 
institutions to facilitate lending of car and mortgage facilities to the Company employees 
at affordable interest rates. The funds earn a nominal interest and are not available for use 
since they are locked. It can only be accessed if management decides to stop the staff loan 
schemes. 

2025 2024

Shs’000 Shs’000
	

Restricted cash 3,197,762 2,733,585 

Allowance for expected credit loss (28,638) (20,836)

3,169,124 2,712,749 

ii) Restricted cash movement in the cash flows

At start of year 2,733,585 1,875,206
Movement during the year 464,177 858,379

At the end of the year 3,197,762 2,733,585

iii) Restricted cash detailed movement

At start of year 2,712,749 1,861,357 
Un-utilized funds as year end 20,836 13,849 
Staff mortgage funding 400,000 800,000 
Interest earned 64,177 58,379 

Allowance for expected credit loss (28,638) (20,836)

Net deferred restricted cash 3,169,124 2,712,749 



187KenGen
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2025

Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

24.  	(b)	 Restricted cash balances (continued)

iv) Expected credit loss on restricted cash balances

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of the year (20,836) (13,849)

Charge to profit or loss (Note 10(f)) (7,802) (6,987)

Allowance for expected credit loss (28,638) (20,836)

	 (c)		 Detailed analysis of the cash and balances held with financial institutions

Description   2025 2024
Financial institution Account number Shs’000 Shs’000

a. Current Account      
Various commercial banks Various 7,281,031 3,497,547

Sub- Total   7,281,031 3,497,547
   

b. On - Call Deposits  

Various commercial banks Various 2,292,343 5,084,484

Sub- Total   2,292,343 5,084,484
   

c. Fixed Deposits Account  

Various commercial banks Various 20,550,812 17,036,216

Sub- Total   20,550,812 17,036,216
   

d. Others (Specify)  
Restricted cash-KCB and 

Stima SACCO
 

3,197,762 2,733,585

Sub- Total   3,197,762 2,733,585

Grand Total   33,321,948 28,351,832
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

25. 		Ordinary share capital and share premium

Ordinary share capital and share premium Number of 
shares

(Thousands)

Ordinary 
shares

Shs’000

Share
 premium

Shs’000

Authorised
At 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024 10,000,000 25,000,000 -

Issued and fully paid

At 30 June 2024 6,594,522 16,487,710 22,151,131

At 30 June 2025 6,594,522 16,486,305 22,148,855

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 10,000,000,000 with a par value of Shs 2.50 per 
share. All issued shares are fully paid. 

Movement in Ordinary Share Capital and Share Premium

Ordinary
shares

Shs’000

Share
premium
Shs’000

Issued and fully paid

At 30 June 2024 16,487,710 22,151,131
Adjustment* (1,405) (2,276)

At 30 June 2025 16,486,305 22,148,855

*The decrease relates to unallotted shares that was to be remitted to the Unclaimed Financial Assets 
Authority (UFAA).
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26. 	 Other reserves (Continued)

	 (a)	 The capital reserve relates to development surcharge received from Kenya Power and Lighting 
Company Plc (KPLC) for financing the development of certain power projects for the period on or 
before 1998. The reserve is not distributable to shareholders.

	 (b) 	The investments revaluation reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the 
revaluation of financial assets that have been recognized in other comprehensive income, net of 
amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those assets have been disposed of. The reserve is not 
distributable to shareholders.

	 (c) 	The property revaluation reserve arises on the revaluation of property, plant & machinery and 
intangible assets as well as leasehold land which is part of Right of Use Assets. When revalued 
property, plant and equipment are disposed, the portion of the plant and machinery revaluation 
reserve that relates to that asset is transferred directly to retained earnings. The reserve is not 
distributable to shareholders.

	 (d) 	Actuarial reserves represent the accumulated remeasurements arising from the Retirement Benefit 
Scheme recognized through other comprehensive income as disclosed under Note 29. The reserve 
is not distributable to shareholders.

27. 	 Retained earnings

	 The retained earnings represent amounts available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. 
Undistributed retained earnings are retained to finance the Company’s business activities.

28. 	 Borrowings 

	 The movement in borrowings is as follows:

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year 116,870,508 148,866,024
External borrowings received in the year (inclusive of net foreign 
exchange movements) 5,922,033 1,620,282
External borrowings repayments in the year (inclusive of net 
foreign exchange movements) (9,440,772) (12,036,593)

Borrowing offset of KETRACO contract asset (Note 18d) - (5,123,799)
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) on revaluation of 

borrowings (Note 9) 6,955,156 (16,455,406)

At end of year 120,306,925 116,870,508

Add: Accrued interest 890,486 913,584

At end of year 121,197,411 117,784,092 

Less: Amounts due within one year (Current portion) (11,926,138) (10,035,376)

Amounts due after one year (Non-current portion) 109,271,273 107,748,716 
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28. 	 Borrowings (Continued)

(a)	 Analysis of interest-bearing borrowings:

Maturity 2025 2024
Year Shs’000 Shs’000

Government of Kenya Guaranteed loans

2.6% Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JICA) 
KE P20-Kipevu 1 (JPY nil) 2025 - 343,464
2.3% Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JICA) 
KE P21 –Sondu Miriu (JPY 676,388,000) 2027 607,685 819,326
0.75% Japan Bank for International Cooperation 
(JICA) KE P23-Sondu Miriu (JPY 6,574,570,001) 2044 5,906,770 5,588,730
0.75% Japan Bank for International Cooperation 
(JICA) KE P24-Sangoro (JPY 3,114,584,000) 2047 2,798,226 2,629,509
0.20% Japan International Cooperation Agency 
(JICA) KE P26-Olkaria I & IV JPY 17,928,494,882) 2040 16,107,444 15,527,646
2.2% Kreditanstalt Fur Wiederaufbau (KfW)-Olkaria I 
& IV (EURO 5,218,000.00) 2026 791,309 1,449,204
0.98% DSSI I (JICA KP20, KP21, KP23, KP24 & KP26) 
(JPY 585,560,000) 2027 526,083 709,303
0.68% DSSI II (JICA KP20, KP21, KP23, KP24 & KP26) 
(JPY 728,675,000) 2027 654,661 823,818
Accrued interest 38,719 41,739

27,430,897 27,932,739
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28. 	 Borrowings (Continued)

(a)	 Analysis of interest-bearing borrowings: (continued)

Maturity 2025 2024
Year Shs’000 Shs’000

Government of Kenya onlent loans
3.5% International Development Association IDA 
4743 KE-Olkaria I & IV (USD 18,580,565.26) 2035 2,401,247 2,647,353 
2.003% Agence Francaise de Development (AFD) 
- Olkaria I & IV (EURO 37,688,445.08) 2031 5,715,453 6,038,815 
2.50% Export-Import Bank of China (EXIM) – 89 
wells (USD 220,673,076.92) 2033 28,518,531 32,394,205 
1.50% Kingdom of Spain-Ngong Phase II - 
13.6MW (EURO 9,163,741.10) 2030 1,389,681 1,503,900 
0.50% National Bank of Belgium (NBB) Ngong 1 
Phase 11 - 6.8 MW (EURO 5,470,200.00) 2043 829,556 801,826 
3.5% International Development Association IDA 
5844-KE Olkaria I& IV (USD 46,847,868.64) 2041 6,054,352 6,447,318 
0.20% Japan International Cooperation Agency 
(JICA) (KE-P31) Olkaria V (JPY 29,978,516,823) 2046 26,933,509 24,160,814 
3.5% European Investment Bank (EIB) Olkaria 1 
Unit 6 (Euro 42,372,565.86) 2042 6,425,800 4,487,692 
1.0% Japan International Cooperation Agency 
(JICA) KE-P33 -Olkaria I Rehabilitation (JPY 
4,794,907,372) 2048 4,307,874 135,425 
Accrued interest 402,213 405,610

82,978,217 79,022,958

Direct borrowings

6 months SOFR + 4.6% Absa Bank Loan (USD 
80,000,000) 2035 10,338,744 10,362,160
Accrued interest 449,553 466,235

10,788,297 10,828,395

121,197,411 117,784,092

(b) Borrowings maturity analysis:
i) 	 Discounted (does not include interest to maturity)

Due within 1 year 11,926,138 10,035,376 
Due between 1 and 2 years 10,901,257 10,403,831 
Due between 2 and 5 years 30,779,246 29,436,789 
Due after 5 years 67,590,770 67,908,096 

121,197,411 117,784,092 
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28. 	Borrowings (continued)

	 (b)	 Borrowings maturity analysis: (continued)

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

ii) Undiscounted (includes interest to maturity)

Due within 1 year 14,901,335 12,730,203

Due between 1 and 2 years 13,187,607 13,379,029

Due between 2 and 5 years 36,027,697 31,723,138

Due after 5 years 72,528,295 78,094,073

136,644,934 135,926,443

(c) Analysis of loans by currency:

Borrowing in US$ 47,312,872 51,851,036 
Borrowings in JPY 57,842,254 50,738,035 
Borrowings in EUR 15,151,799 14,281,437 

Borrowings in foreign currencies 120,306,925 116,870,508 

Accrued interest 890,486 913,584 

Total 121,197,411 117,784,092 

On-lent loan facilities are entered into by the Government of Kenya with Development Fi-
nance Institutions (DFIs) and subsequently on-lend to the Company through subsidiary loan 
agreements.

Securities: 
The Government of Kenya has issued guarantees to the lenders in relation to the guaranteed 
borrowings. 
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28. 	 Borrowings (continued)
	
	 (d) 	The movement in borrowings is as follows:

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year 116,870,508 148,866,024

Received in the year 5,922,033 1,620,282

Repayments in the year (8,320,538) (9,701,910)
Realised exchange gain on repayment of borrowings 

billed to KPLC (Note 19) (1,117,110) (2,229,463)

Realised foreign exchange gain/(loss) capitalized 3,193 (6,287)
Realised exchange gain on repayment of borrowings 

not billed to KPLC (6,317) (98,933)
Borrowing offset from KETRACO contract asset

(Note 18d) - (5,123,799)
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) on revaluation 

of borrowings (Note 19) 6,955,156 (16,455,406)

 At end of year 120,306,925 116,870,508

 Add: Accrued interest 890,486 913,584

 At end of year 121,197,411 117,784,092

Less: Amounts due within one year (current portion) (11,926,138) (10,035,376)

Amounts due after one year (non-current portion) 109,271,273 107,748,716
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29.  	Retirement benefits asset (Continued)

Recognition (continued)

(b)	 Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position (continued)

	 The fair values of the plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category are as 
follows:

2025 2024

Shs’000 Shs’000

Asset Class 

*Government Securities 5,072,599 4,098,516

Quoted Equities 724,268 528,798

Immovable Property in Kenya 4,045,766 4,124,827

Listed Corporate Bonds 36,431 34,366

Fixed Deposits 162,533 168,620

Offshore Investments 181,244 161,030

Cash & Demand Deposits 52,953 182,110

**    Any Other Asset 328,801 80,375

Creditors & Payables (643,479) (95,098)

Closing Market Value of Assets 9,961,116 9,283,544

* 	 Government Securities include Treasury Bills and Treasury Bonds 
**	 Other Current Assets 

(c) 	 Sensitivity analysis 

When there is an unfavorable change in the principal assumptions, they negatively affect the 
Company’s obligation. The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal 
assumptions is as follows:

Parameter Sensitivity 2025 Change in 
assumption

Impact on defined benefit 
obligation

Discount rate 11.95 12.45 Decrease by 0.5% Increase in the present value of 
obligation by Shs 356,188,000

Discount rate 12.95 12.45 Increase by 0.5% Decrease in the present value of 
obligation by Shs 502,255,000

Salary 7% 8% Decrease by 1% Increase in the present value of 
obligation by Shs 101,241,000

Salary 9% 8% Increase by 1% Decrease in the present value of 
obligation by Shs 95,226,000

Retirement age 55 60 Decrease by 5yrs Increase in the present value of 
obligation by Shs 475,397,000
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29.  	Retirement benefits asset (Continued)

Recognition (continued)

(c) 	 Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all 
other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the 
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation 
to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit 
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has 
been applied as when calculating the defined benefit asset recognized in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change 
compared to the prior period.

30.	 Deferred Taxation

	 Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using the 
applicable rate, currently at 30%. The makeup of the deferred tax liabilities in the year and the 
movement on the deferred tax account during the year are presented below:

  2025 2024
  Shs’000 Shs’000

Movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

At the start of year 84,531,405 81,629,986 

Income statement charge (Note 13(a)) 4,012,092 3,277,671 

Prior year (over)/under provision (Note 13(a)) (66) 12,114 

Credit to other comprehensive income (Note 26) 105,838 (388,366)

At the end of the year 88,649,269 84,531,405 

	 The increase in deferred tax liability arises from reinstatement of revalued assets and profit for the 
year.

	 The Company has recognized deferred tax assets mainly relate to tax losses carried forward, capital 
allowances and other temporary differences. Utilization of these assets depends on the availability of 
sufficient future taxable profits.

	 Management has assessed the recoverability of the deferred tax assets based on approved business 
plans and forecasts of future taxable income. It is considered probable that sufficient taxable profits 
will be available to utilize the deferred tax assets within the foreseeable future.

	 The assumptions underlying this assessment will be reviewed at each reporting date to ensure the 
recognition of deferred tax assets remains appropriate.



203KenGen
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2025

Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

30. 	 Deferred Taxation (continued)

At start of 
year

Charged / 
(Credited) 

to P/L

Charged / 
(Credited) 

to OCI
At end of 

year

Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Year ended 30 June 2025

Deferred tax assets:

Tax losses (4,917,323) 3,164,935 - (1,752,388)

Provisions and other temporary differences (2,173,053) (526,199) (20,574) (2,719,826)

Overprovision in the prior year 12,114 (12,180) - (66)

Unrealised exchange (loss)/gains (319,285) 261,299 - (57,987)

(7,397,547) 2,887,855 (20,574) (4,530,267)

Deferred tax liabilities:

 Revaluation surplus - capital gains 511,194 - - 511,194

Revaluation surplus 42,700,051 (1,140,921) 126,412 41,685,542

Accelerated capital allowances 48,717,707 2,265,092 - 50,982,800

91,928,952 1,124,171 126,412 93,179,536

Net deferred tax liability 84,531,405 4,012,026 105,838 88,649,269
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30.	 Deferred Taxation (continued)

At start of year

Charged / 
(Credited) to 

P/L

Charged / 
(Credited) 

to OCI
At end of 

year
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Year ended 30 June 2024

Deferred tax assets:

Tax losses (7,997,326) 3,080,003 - (4,917,323)
Provisions and other temporary 
differences (1,646,599) (252,860) (273,594) (2,173,053)

Overprovision in the prior year - 12,114 - 12,114

Unrealised exchange (loss)/gains 560,734 (880,019) - (319,285)

(9,083,191) 1,959,238 (273,594) (7,397,547)

Deferred tax liabilities:

 Revaluation surplus - capital gains 511,194 - - 511,194

Revaluation surplus 43,982,591 (1,167,768) (114,772) 42,700,051

Accelerated capital allowances 46,219,392 2,498,315 - 48,717,707

90,713,177 1,330,547 (114,772) 91,928,952

Net deferred tax liability 81,629,986 3,289,785 (388,366) 84,531,405 
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31. 	 Lease Liabilities

2025 2024

Shs’000 Shs’000

At the start of year 1,063,626 851,702
Additional leases (Note 17) 3,161 332,015
Interest on lease liability (Note 12) 103,246 155,794
Paid during the year (Principal and interest) (268,423) (275,885)

At the end of year 901,610 1,063,626

Comprising:

Current Portion 133,286 172,127

Non- current portion 768,324 891,499

901,610 1,063,626

Maturity Analysis of undiscounted cash flows

Year 1 224,342 275,227 

Year 2 130,077 223,041 

Year 3 65,915 130,077 

Year 4 65,609 115,064 

Year 5 and beyond 2,695,969 2,658,098 

3,181,912 3,401,507 

32. Grants

At the start of year 1,228,401 833,351 

Received during the year 721,330 396,828 

Amortization credit to profit or loss (1,641) (1,778)

*At the end of year 1,948,090 1,228,401 

*	 This relates to funds received from the World Bank as a grant towards the construction of the 
East Africa Skills for Transformation and Regional Integration Projects (EASTRIP) and Subsidy for 
Olkaria I Unit 6 for exploration and development of geothermal resources in Kenya.  The EASTRIP 
Project is expected to be completed in the financial year 2026/27.

 
	 Other grants which the Company has benefited through funding from Donors where funds were 

disbursed directly to the consultants include Marsabit Wind Feasibility Study (EUR 642,898.00) 
from AFD, Floating Solar Pre-feasibility Study (EUR 148,898.40) from KfW, Raising Masinga Dam 
Feasibility Study update (EUR 818,260.30) from AFD, and Redevelopment of Gogo Hydro Power 
Development Feasibility Study (EUR 590,446.00) from European Union (EU).
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33.	 Trade and other payables

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000 

Contractors and retention money* 955,039 322,187

Trade payables 5,370,877 5,934,937

Due to KPLC (note 36(a)(ii)) ** - 156,223

Sundry creditors accruals*** 1,670,539 1,844,558

Gratuity accrual 165,309 121,798

Leave accrual 171,155 199,608

Total trade and other payables 8,332,919 8,579,311

* 	 The increase in retention is in relation to Olkaria I Rehabilitation which is ongoing.
** 	 Towards the end of the year the company received a credit note of Shs 625 million from KPLC in 

respect of its electricity consumption which resulted into this supply account being net receivable 
(Note 22).

***	 Sundry creditors represent amounts payable to third parties other than trade suppliers and are 
classified as current liabilities. These mainly include accruals, statutory deductions, and amounts 
due to staff and service providers. The amounts also include deferred income of Shs 47,675,000 
with respect to drilling activities in Tanzania. Other amounts are short term, unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are normally settled within the Company’s normal operating cycle.

34. 	 Dividends payable

	 Proposed dividends are accounted for as part of equity until they have been ratified and declared at 
the relevant Annual General Meeting (AGM). At the AGM, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 
30 June 2025 of Shs. 0.90 (2024: Shs. 0.65) for every ordinary share of par value of Shs. 2.50 is to be 
proposed. No interim dividend was declared during the year. The dividend account is as follows:

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

	

At start of year - 923,086

Approved dividends 4,286,441 1,978,357

Amount paid during the year (4,286,441) (2,901,443)

At end of year - -
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35.	 Notes to the statement of cash flows

	 (a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from operations.

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Profit before income tax 15,472,953 10,946,865 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation (Note 10(a)) 13,988,223 15,215,524 

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 10(a)) 253,546 245,599 

Depreciation of Right of use assets (Note 10(a)) 242,876 246,580 

Finance income (Note 11) (4,109,861) (4,201,745)

Finance cost (Note 12) 2,253,457 2,805,920 

Net decrease in contract asset (Note 18(d)) - 439,692 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) (198,492) (3,846)

Amortization of treasury bonds (Note 18(c)) 13,557 (12,355)

Impairment of deferred debt (Note 18(a)) (1,712) (7,463)

Impairment of held-to-maturity treasury bonds (Note 18(c)) (768) 678 

Impairment of capital work in progress (Note 10(g)) 538,052 39,478 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 10(g)) (201,698) 912,830 
Impairment of financial asset due from KPLC (Note 18(b and d)) 108,975 (265,020)
Decrease in financial asset through profit or loss (324,660) 1,560,692
Tax expense for foreign operations 96,939 -
Financial asset recoveries (Note 18(b)) 124,198 123,595 

Operating profit before working capital changes 28,255,585 28,047,024

Changes in working capital:

Increase in inventories (Note 20) (787,640) (287,838)

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (Note 21) (16,789) 4,819,285

Decrease in other receivables (Note 22) 687,284 1,414,116

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (Note 33) (246,392) 285,469

Cash generated from operations 27,892,048 34,278,056
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35. 	 Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)

2025 2024

Shs’000 Shs’000

(b) Movement in finance income 

At start of year 425,874 115,569 

Interest income (Note 11) 4,109,861 4,201,745 

Finance income received (3,957,555) (3,181,275)

Accrued interest from Kenya Power (Note 11) (303,717) (710,165)

At end of year 274,463 425,874 

(c) Movement in interest payables on borrowings

At start of year 913,584 985,782 

Interest expense (Note 12)  2,150,211 2,805,920 

Interest paid on borrowings  (2,173,309) (2,878,118)

At end of year (Note 28) 890,486 913,584 
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35. 	 Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)

(d)	 Analysis of proceeds from disposal of Assets

2025 2024

Land Property, 
plant & 

equipment

Total Property, 
plant & 

equipment
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Proceeds from disposal of assets 250,612 61,184 311,796 8,988
Less: Disposed assets net book value (93,441) (53,675) (147,116) (5,142) 
Add: Reversal of revaluation surplus 33,812 - 33,812 -

Net gain on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment 190,983 7,509 198,492 3,846

(e)  Net debt reconciliation

	 This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods 
presented.

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Cash and bank balances (Note 24) 29,317,145 24,850,342

Borrowings repayable within one year (Note 28) (11,926,138) (10,035,376)

Borrowings repayable after one year (Note 28) (109,271,273) (107,748,716)

Net debt (91,880,266) (92,933,750)
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

35. 	 Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)

(e) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

            

Cash and 
bank 

balances Borrowings Net Debt

Net debt as 1 July 2024 25,618,247 (116,870,508) (91,252,261)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,513,663 - 4,513,663
Received in the year - (5,922,033) (5,922,033)
Repaid in the year - 8,320,538 8,320,538
Realised exchange gain on repayments of 
borrowings 1,120,234 1,120,234
Unrealised exchange loss in the year - (6,955,156) (6,955,156)
Accrued interest - (890,486) (890,486)
Expected credit loss on cash and bank balances (807,041) - (807,041)
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes (7,724) - (7,724)

Net debt as at 30 June 2025 29,317,145 (121,197,411) (91,880,266)

Net debt as 1 July 2023 15,474,003 (148,866,024) (133,392,021)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,156,401 - 10,156,401

Received in the year - (1,620,282) (1,620,282)

Repaid in the year - 9,701,910 9,701,910
Realised exchange loss on repayment of 
borrowings 2,334,683 2,334,683

Borrowing offset from KETRACO contract asset - 5,123,799 5,123,799

Unrealised exchange gain in the year - 16,455,406 16,455,406

Accrued interest - (913,584) (913,584)

Expected credit loss on cash and bank balances (767,905) - (767,905)

Effects of foreign exchange rates changes (12,157) - (12,157)

Net debt as at 30 June 2024 24,850,342 (117,784,092) (92,933,750)

*	 The opening balance of net debt does not reconcile exactly with the prior year’s closing balance 
primarily due to adjustments arising from accrued interest on borrowings and expected credit loss 
on cash balances. These adjustments are recognized directly in the statement of financial position 
and not through the cash flow statement. As a result, the opening net debt reflects the restated 
carrying values of borrowings and cash balances as at the beginning of the year, which differ from 
the previously reported closing balances.
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

36.	 Related party transactions

	 The Company is 70% owned by the Government of Kenya. The remaining 30% of the shares are widely 
held by the public. In line with the exemptions in IAS 24, and by virtue that the government is the major 
shareholder of the company, we do not consider as related parties: providers of finance, trade unions, 
public utilities and any agencies, departments of the government of Kenya, any state corporations or 
other state or county entities that do not control, jointly control or significantly influence the reporting 
entity. The Government of Kenya has provided some guarantees to long-term external lenders of the 
entity and on-lent loans to the Company (Note 28). 

	 The company’s main related parties include Government of Kenya - Ministry of Energy, The National 
Treasury, The Kenya Power and Lighting Company Plc (Kenya Power), Geothermal Development 
Company Limited (GDC). Rural Electrification & Renewable Energy Corporation, Water Resource 
Authority (WRA), Board of Directors and Key Management.

(a)  	Kenya Power and Lighting Company Plc (KPLC)

	 Kenya Power is the authorised electricity distributor in Kenya with its majority shareholder being the 
Government of Kenya. 

	 (i)  During the year the following transactions were carried out with KPLC;

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Electricity sales (Note 6(a)) 40,410,264 41,252,372
Steam revenue (Note 6 (a)) 5,644,330 6,875,964
Fuel charges billed (Note 6(a)) 9,607,542 7,923,700
Water charges billed (Note 6(a)) 172,275 166,593
Interest income on amounts due (Note 11) 303,717 710,165
Realised foreign exchange loss billed to KPLC

- borrowings (Note 28(d)) 1,117,110, 2,229,463
Realised foreign exchange loss billed to KPLC-

other transactions (Note 9)
1,465,830 1,512,403

Recovery of the Olkaria V transmission line cost 124,198 123,595

58,845,266 60,794,255

Electricity purchases from KPLC 384,730 648,563

(ii)	 The following amounts due from/to KPLC relate to outstanding balances at year end for purchase 	
of electricity.

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Trade payables (Note 33) - 156,223

Other receivables and prepayments (Note 22) 251,336 -

     	 The sales to Kenya Power are made in accordance with the signed Power Purchase Agreements 
whereas the   purchases from Kenya Power are made at normal market prices. 
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

36.	 Related party transactions (continued)

(a)  	 Kenya Power and Lighting Company Plc (KPLC) (continued)

(iii)	 Amounts due from KPLC

2025 2024

Shs’000 Shs’000

Amount due for electricity sales (Note 21) 17,477,372 17,096,299 
Emergency power receivable (Note 37) 230,700 231,085 

17,708,072 17,327,384 

Financial asset due from KPLC-Olkaria V 
transmission line (Note 18(b)) 1,230,022 1,302,371

18,938,094 18,629,755 

(iv) Recoverable foreign exchange differences 

(Note 19) 7,489,108 1,624,333

	 (b)	 Geothermal Development Company Limited (GDC)

	 Geothermal Development Company Limited is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and 
its principal activities are the development of geothermal resources in Kenya through surface 
exploration and drilling for steam, and to avail steam power to developers for electricity 
generation.

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

(i) Amount due to GDC (included in trade payables) 1,393,188 1,097,353

(ii) Steam purchases (Note 10(c)) 3,496,434 4,393,595

At the start of year 44,298 111,894
Receipts during the year 113,000 -
Payments during the year (78,051) (67,596)

Amounts due to REREC at end of year 

(included in other payables)
79,247 44,298

	
	The balance represents funds received in advance from REREC for the operation and 
maintenance of the 50MW Garissa Solar Plant, which KenGen manages on behalf of 
REREC.

(c)   	   Rural Electrification and Renewable Energy Corporation   
	   (REREC)
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

36. 	 Related party transactions (continued)

(d)	 Water Resource Authority (WRA)

WRA charges for water use at the rate of 0.05 Shs/kWh for power plants with capacity of over 
1MW with approval from the Energy and Petroleum Regulatory Authority (EPRA). 

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Amount due to WRA (included in trade payables) 112,806 179,482

Water charge 172,275 166,593

The Water Resource Regulations 2021 introduced an increase of water use charges from Shs 0.05 
cents/kWh to KShs. 2/kWh for hydro power generation above 1MW and additional 5% conservation 
levy. The same has not been validated since there is court Order that suspended the implementation 
of the said Regulations. Additionally, the increase has not been gazetted by Energy & Petroleum 
Regulatory Authority (EPRA) as a pass-through cost of energy. Following the commencement of 
the Regulations, WRA billed the Company Shs. 493,685,414 for the water use charges in February 
and March 2023. The court allowed a temporary injunction setting aside the implementation of the 
Regulations as proposed by WRA and as at the reporting period the matter was still pending before 
the High Court.

(e)	 Kenya Electricity Transmission Company Limited (KETRACO) – Balances due from: 

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Sondu Miriu Transmission Line (Note 18(a)) 731,327 692,885

 Amounts due from KETRACO 731,327 692,885

(f)	 Directors’ remuneration, other expenses and key management compensation

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Directors’ remuneration and other expenses
Fees for services as a director 6,000 6,000 

Sitting and other allowances 17,406 16,714 

23,406 22,714
Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employment benefits

Key management (Departmental Heads) 88,850 95,686 
Managing Director and CEO 14,694 14,642 
Leave accrual – Managing Director and CEO 503 403 

104,047 110,731 

Total fees, salaries and other emoluments 127,453 133,445 
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

36. 	 Related party transactions (continued)

(f) 	 Directors’ remuneration and key management compensation (continued)

	 Key management are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including director (whether 
executive or otherwise) of the entity.

(g) 	 Loans to/from directors of the Company

	 There were no loans to/from directors outstanding at 30 June 2025 (2024: Nil).

(h) 	 Loans from Shareholders

	 Government of Kenya on-lent loans amounted to Shs 82.5 billion (2024:78.6 billion).

(i) 	 Donations to KenGen Foundation

	 Donations made during the year amounted to Shs 61.6 million (2024: Shs 92 million).

(j) 	 Kerio Valley Development Authority (KVDA)

	 Payments made during the year amounted to Shs 45 million (2024: Shs 45 million) for dam and 
environmental management. There is no outstanding amount.

(k) 	 Tana and Athi River Development Authority (TARDA)

	 Payments made during the year amounted to Shs 62 million (2024: Shs 62 million) for dam and 
environmental management. There is no outstanding amount.

 (l) 	 Kenya National Highways Authority (KeNHA)
     
	 Incuded in other receivables is an amount of Shs. 250.6 million due from the Kenya National 

Highways Authority (KeNHA) as at 30 June 2025. The balance relates to compensation 
receivable for land and improvements.

(m) 	 Subsidiary

	 The following relationships exist within KenGen PLC:

Related parties Held by Percentage of interest held 
as at 30 June

2025 2024

KenGen Foundation KenGen 100% 100%

	 KenGen Foundation was established by KenGen PLC as a public charitable trust by Declaration of 
trust deed dated 2009 and is domiciled in Kenya. The Foundation serves as the philanthropic arm 
of KenGen and is mandated to: Turn short term one-off CSR Projects into CSI-Corporate Social 
Investments; Upscale CSI activities for greater impact and increase and diversify resources 
available for CSI projects. The Foundation is wholly controlled by KenGen Plc but its financial 
statements have not been consolidated as it is considered immaterial by the directors.
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

37. 	Emergency Power Project

	 The Company managed an Emergency Power Supply project known as Aggreko International Projects 
as an implementing commissioning agent on behalf of the Ministry of Energy. These funds are held in 
an Escrow bank account at the NCBA Bank Kenya Plc. Movements in the Escrow account which are not 
included in the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, are summarized below;

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year 559,440 598,475 
Interest income 7,544 7,550 
Loss on foreign exchange during the year* (1,279) (46,585)

At end of year 565,705 559,440 

*	 The amount relates to foreign exchange fluctuations.  

An amount of Shs 231 million (2024: Shs 231 million) for Emergency Power Project is due from Kenya 
Power and Lighting Company Plc.

38. 	Contingent liabilities and assets

(i)	 Letters of credit
	 Letters of credit signify commitment by the Company to make payments to third parties for 

contracts entered into, generally relating to foreign payments. Outstanding letters of credit as at 30 
June 2025 amounted to Shs 640,168,522 (30 June 2024 Shs: 1,235,169,162).

(ii) 	 Compensating Tax and Withholding Tax Assessment
	 Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA) issued an assessment of KShs. 2,945,067,645 on Compensating 

Tax and Withholding tax on dividends for the period 2019 to 2023. KenGen appealed against KRA’s 
decision to the Tax Appeals Tribunal as provided by the Tax Appeals Tribunal Act. The matter is 
currently at the Tax Appeals Tribunal pending hearing and determination.

(iii) Customs Duty
	 Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA) conducted a post clearance audit for the period 2019 to 2022. KRA 

raised an estimated assessment of KShs 342,780,004 relating to tariff classification, valuation for 
custom duties, proof of exports and temporary importation of equipment. Through a Government-
to-Government engagement, KenGen and KRA resolved to drop assessment amounting to KShs 
124,312,190, while KShs 164,355,339 was deemed payable and an amount of KShs 54,112,475 is 
still under engagement under the Government to Government initiative.

	 KenGen and KRA entered an eight (8) month payment plan for the amount of KShs 164,355,339. 
KenGen settled the entire amount of KShs 164,355,339 by December 2024. During the Government 
– Government engagement, there was an outstanding assessment raised by KRA of KShs 
54,112,475 relating to valuation of imported equipment. KenGen is currently engaging KRA to 
amicably resolve the issue.

(iv) 	Bank guarantee
	 Bank guarantees in the form of Performance Guarantees were issued to third parties on account 

of contracts signed with them. This amounted to Shs 77.9 million as at 30 June 2025. (2024: Shs 
219.3 million).
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

41.  	Financial risk management (continued)

	 (d)	 Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value Carrying value
  KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000

At 30 June 2024        

Assets
Cash and balances with banks 24,850,342 - - 24,850,342 24,850,342
Restricted cash 2,712,749 - - 2,712,749 2,712,749
Financial assets at amortized cost - - 1,964,584 1,964,584 1,964,584
Trade receivables - - 16,629,593 16,629,593 16,629,593
Financial assets at amortized 
cost-Treasury bond - 2,323,042 - 2,323,042 2,323,042
Other receivables - - 3,027,582 3,027,582 3,027,582

Total 27,563,091 2,323,042 21,621,759 51,507,892 51,507,892

Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 6,413,347 6,413,347 6,413,347
Borrowings - - 117,784,092 117,784,092 117,784,092

Total - - 124,197,439 124,197,439 124,197,439

The valuation techniques used in determining the fair value of financial assets and liabilities classified within 
level 2 and level 3.

The table below indicates the valuation techniques and main assumptions used in the determination of the 
fair value of the level 2 and level 3 assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is 
disclosed:

Valuation basis/technique Main assumptions

Deferred Debt – Kenya Power Discounted cash flow model Discount rate
Trade receivables Discounted cash flow model Discount rate
Financial assets Discounted cash flow model Market yield of the bond
Other receivables Discounted cash flow model Discount rate
Trade and other payables Discounted cash flow model Discount rate
Borrowings Discounted cash flow model Discount rate
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

41.  	Financial risk management (continued)

(d)	 Fair value measurement (continued)

Non- financial instruments measured at fair value

This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of non-
financial assets recognized and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide 
transparency regarding the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has 
classified its non-financial assets into three levels as prescribed under IFRS 13.

Sensitivity Analysis for Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

For Level 3 fair value measurements, which rely on significant unobservable inputs, the following 
sensitivities to changes in key assumptions are considered:

Discount rate

A 1% increase in the discount rate used for the deferred debt, trade receivables, and borrowings 
would result in a decrease in fair value of approximately 5%. Conversely, a 1% decrease in the 
discount rate would result in an increase in fair value of approximately 6%.

Market yield of bonds

The fair value of financial assets is sensitive to changes in the market yield of bonds. A 0.5% 
increase in market yield would result in a 3% decrease in fair value, while a 0.5% decrease in 
market yield would lead to a 3.5% increase in fair value.

Interrelationships between inputs

In certain instances, there are interrelationships between unobservable inputs used in the fair 
value measurements of non-financial assets, which may magnify or mitigate the overall effect on 
fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000

Year ended 30 June 2025
Property plant and equipment 355,519,873 355,519,873
Intangible assets - - 1,909,305 1,909,305
Leasehold land - - 6,208,434 6,208,434

Total assets - - 363,637,612 363,637,612

Assets

Year ended 30 June 2024
Property plant and equipment - - 359,864,787 359,864,787
Intangible assets 1,933,313 1,933,313
Leasehold land 5,767,239 5,767,239

Total assets - - 367,565,339 367,565,339

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 in the period (2024: Nil).
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

41.  	Financial risk management (continued)

(d)	 Fair value measurement (continued)

	 Non-financial assets held at fair value (Continued))

Valuation techniques used to determine level 3 fair values
The Company obtains independent valuations for its property plant and equipment at least every five 
years. The valuation method used is the depreciated replacement cost approach. The property plant 
and equipment classes subject to fair valuation are land and buildings, transmission lines and plant 
and equipment.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
We have disclosed under Note 15, the changes in level 3 items for the periods ended 30 June 2025 and 
30 June 2024 for recurring fair value measurements

The following table summarizes the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs 
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. See above for the valuation techniques adopted.

Description Fair value as at 30 
June 2025

Fair value as 
at 30 June 2024

Unobservable 
inputs

Relationship of 
unobservable 
inputs to fair 
value

Shs’000 Shs’000

Estimated 
useful life The higher the 

estimated useful 
life, the higher 
the fair value

Property plant 
and equipment 355,519,873 359,864,787

Intangible assets 1,909,305 1,933,313

Leasehold land 6,208,434 5,767,239

363,637,612 367,565,339

The Company’s land, buildings, transmission lines, intangible assets and plant and machinery are 
stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. The fair value 
measurements as at 30 June 2022 were performed by AON valuation services of Australia, Zenith 
Associates, Syagga and associates and Ebony Limited, independent valuers not related to the Company. 
These firms have appropriate qualifications in fair value measurement. The valuation conforms to 
International Valuation Standards.

42. 	 Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains some 
strong and healthy capital ratios to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The Capital 
Management policy as approved by the Board of Directors (the Board) is to maintain a strong capital 
base to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the 
business. The Board monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net operating 
income divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary 
shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares as circumstances would dictate. There were no 
changes in the Company’s approach to capital management as regards the objectives, policies or 
processes during the year. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided 
by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s target is to keep the gearing ratios below 70%.
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Notes to the financial statements (cont’d)
For the year ended 30 June 2025

42. 	 Capital risk management (continued)

2025 2024
Shs’000 Shs’000

Ordinary shares and distributable reserves 168,209,754 159,375,736
Borrowings 121,197,411 117,784,092
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 24) (29,317,145) (24,850,342)
Net debt 91,880,266 92,933,750

Gearing ratio 35% 37%

43.	 Subsequent events

	 On 26th September 2025, the Company signed a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Kenya Power 
and Lighting Company PLC (KPLC) for the Muhoroni GT Power Plant. The PPA will run for the interim 
period spelled out in the contract and one year from the signing date. The agreement sets out the 
commercial and operational terms governing the sale of electricity generated from the plant to KPLC. 
The signing of the PPA marks a key milestone towards the optimisation and continued utilisation of 
the Muhoroni facility in line with the Company’s strategic objective of enhancing generation capacity 
and supporting national grid stability. This event occurred after the reporting date. However, the impact 
on the financial statements for the year ended   30 June 2025 had been considered.
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